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ABOUT THE ACADEMY

The Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (Academy) was formally
established under the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Ordinance
(Cap 419), to address the need for postgraduate medical and
dental education and training in Hong Kong.

The Academy is an independent institution with statutory power to
organise, monitor, assess and accredit all medical specialist training
and to oversee the provision of continuing medical education in
Hong Kong.

OBJECTS OF THE ACADEMY

Objectives of the Academy are:

to promote the advancement of the art and science of medicine;

» to foster the development of continuing medical education;

e to promote integrity, ethical conduct and standards in the
practice of medicine and its specialties;

* to promote the improvement of health care for Hong Kong

citizens;

e to foster a spirit of cooperation among medical practitioners;

and

« to facilitate the exchange of information and ideas in medicine
and matters concerning the medical profession.
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“ 2019 has been another eventful year for the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine. Although
the successful events and activities of the 25"
anniversary of the Academy are now behind us,
the anniversary theme, “Medical Excellence
for a Healthy Future”, continues to provide
inspiration to drive us forward. Much has been
accomplished in the past year in pursuit of

the Academy’s objectives, as described in this

29
report.
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25™ Anniversary Celebration

The 25" anniversary celebrations concluded in December 2018
with the Anniversary Congress, President’'s Dinner and Silver
Jubilee Gala Dinner.

It was a pleasure to see more than 500 local, mainland and
overseas participants attending the 3-day Anniversary Congress,
held at the Academy building, to discuss the latest developments
and challenges for medical practitioners. On the same day, the
Academy’s Annual Fellowship Conferment Ceremony was held and

264 Academy Fellows were conferred.

| express my sincere gratitude to my colleagues, the Organising
Committee, the Secretariat, and of course all of the attendees,
without whom the 25" anniversary activities could not have been

successful.

Specialist Manpower Shortage Problem

It is imperative that the medical community, with the support of
the Government, is prepared and able to respond to disruptions.
These disruptions arise not only from increasingly prevalent age-
and lifestyle-related medical conditions, but also from the broader
spectrum of disease manifestations and patient expectations
resulting from closer integration of Hong Kong with the rest of
the Greater Bay Area, as well as the potential effects of climate
change. Employers, government agencies and regulatory and
training bodies need to be aware of such disruptions, and make
corresponding changes to the medical workforce by encouraging
flexibility in training, employment and recertification. Healthcare
workers’ physical and mental well-being must also be considered,
to ensure that they are well enough to provide the highest level of
patient care to the community.
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The quality of health services relies on a sustainable supply of
manpower. As highlighted in the Food and Health Bureau’s 2017
report on healthcare manpower in Hong Kong, our city is facing a
serious shortage of doctors. However, these data did not include
details on the various specialties. As urged by the Academy, the
Bureau has commissioned a follow-up study which will look into
the manpower shortage problem down to the specialty level. The
Academy and all Colleges have been actively participating in the
said study.

The Medical Council of Hong Kong has decided to exempt the
internship requirement for non-locally trained specialists in May
2019. This is a bold step forward and the Academy will support
further initiatives that can address the shortage. The Academy will
continue to play an important role in safeguarding the professional
standards of the medical profession in order to help protect the
health of the community. For example, the Education Committee of
the Academy has been vetting applications from overseas doctors
for certification for specialist registration.

Following the initiative of the Food and Health Bureau, Colleges
have also been encouraged to review the feasibility of accepting
non-locally trained doctors as specialist trainees. Although it is
important to help resolve the healthcare manpower shortage, it is
one of the Academy’s objectives to uphold standards of specialist
training. Colleges continue to play the gatekeeper role for assuring
the quality of specialist training, with consideration of training
capacity and professional standards. The Academy Council has
also discussed and agreed that local graduates and trainees
should be given priority. Non-locally trained doctors should only be
considered when there are insufficient local candidates for filling
up the training posts.

Mainland and Overseas Collaboration
in Specialist Education and Training

Promoting collaboration and cooperation both locally and
internationally, in order to foster knowledge exchange, is one of my
goals as President of the Academy. | am very proud that we have

made some strong progress this year.
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In December 2018, the Academy signed a Memorandum of
Understanding with the Korean Academy of Medical Sciences. In
October 2019, Prof. Gilberto Leung, Vice-President (Education and
Examinations), and | were invited to visit Seoul to explore further
cooperation between the two academies. In December 2018, we
also renewed our agreement with the Chinese Medical Association
to promote academic collaboration and exchange in medical
education.

In June 2019, the Academy’s membership with the International
Association of Medical Regulatory Authorities (IAMRA) has been
changed from that of a Partner to a Member as a recognition of
our unique statutory role in organising, monitoring, assessing
and accrediting medical and dental specialist training locally. In
addition, we have recently made some very tentative exploratory
steps towards the possibility of substantial equivalency between the
Accreditation Council for Continuing Medical Education and our
own CME programmes and activities. The aim is to ensure that we
are on par with international standards and to exchange views on

quality assurance.

As a result of our cooperation with the Shenzhen Medical Doctor
Association, and with support from the Shenzhen Municipal Health
Commission, the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Medical Specialist Training
Centre was formally unveiled on 2 July 2019. | look forward to seeing
the Centre achieve its goal to raise the standard of health services
in Shenzhen. In addition to providing those living in the Greater
Bay Area with quality medical services, the Centre also presents
an opportunity for Hong Kong trainees to experience clinical cases
in China.

Also
representatives attended the Inauguration of the Macao Academy

in July, Academy Officers and College presidents or
of Medicine cum Fellowship Conferment Ceremony. While there, we
signed a Memorandum of Understanding with the Macao Academy
of Medicine to extend our collaboration on specialist training.
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Progress on Credentialling

In the past year, we have completed the review on the Guidelines
on Procedural Sedation and released a revised version in April
2019. In addition, with the joint effort of relevant Colleges, the
credentialling guidelines for neurointerventional procedures
have been developed and will be implemented in due course.
All these initiatives demonstrate the Academy’s commitment in
keeping abreast of the latest developments in clinical practice and

continuing to improve professional standards.

Set up of Professionalism and
Ethics Committee

In March 2019, we announced the establishment of the
Professionalism and Ethics Committee with the aim of promoting
medical and dental professionalism and ethical practice. The
Committee will arrange for the provision of relevant education and
training by the Academy and its Colleges, and may respond to
requests from the Academy Council and the Education Committee
for advice on ethical issues related to the practice of specialty
medicine and dentistry, public policy and other Academy matters.
The Committee will also identify and examine matters arising for the
attention of the Academy Council, or its Colleges or committees,

and formulate best practice guidelines.

Young Fellows Chapter

The Young Fellows Chapter (YFC) is now in its third term, which runs
from 2019 to 2020. To investigate the physical and psychological
status and other related health issues among young Fellows and
trainees in Hong Kong, the YFC conducted a study during February
and May 2019. Over 450 completed questionnaires were received
and a detailed analysis is being conducted. The YFC hopes to
identify areas which can help sustain good health and well-being
for all young doctors.
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In February 2019, we organised the first ever study tour for young
led by Dr. C.C. Lau, Vice-President (General Affairs).

During a five-day tour to Sichuan, the group visited various

Fellows,

government departments and health institutions and organisations
to understand the healthcare development as well as learning about
the history and infrastructural developments of Sichuan. | am glad
to know that participants had a very fruitful and enjoyable trip. We
intend to organise similar study tours in future and we hope you will
continue to support our initiatives for nurturing young healthcare
leaders.

Set up of Social Subcommittee for

Fellows’ Well-being

It is important for us to consider the well-being of our Fellows and
trainees. With that in mind, the Social Subcommittee was set up
under the Academy’s House Committee in order to provide extra-
curricular social activities for Fellows. The activities would hopefully
also connect Fellows, bring them back to the Academy, increase
cohesion and enhance the sense of belonging to the Academy and
among Fellows. | hope to see more Fellows engaging in sports,

cultural, recreational, or other enjoyable activities together.

The first activity organised by the subcommittee was a Fellows’ Get-
Together held on the day following Mid-Autumn. This sell-out event
attracted over 120 Fellows and their families and friends. Four
doctors’ bands gave energetic live performances and attendees
voted for their Most Favourite Band.

Development of e-Portfolio

The Academy is currently developing a standardised common
module of e-Portfolio system, which aims to help Colleges,
Fellows and trainees keep their respective records of training
and examinations in a more organised and structural way. We are
working with Colleges that have already indicated interest first, but
this will be made available to all Colleges in due course.
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Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Press

Publishing medical journals is one of the most effective ways to
facilitate medical research and knowledge sharing. Thanks to the
efforts of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Press, under the
guidance of Prof. Martin Wong, Editor, | am glad that the 2018
Journal Impact Factor of the Hong Kong Medical Journal (HKMJ) is
1.588, a substantial improvement from 1.226 in 2017. | hope you
will continue to support HKMJ in the future.

Hong Kong Jockey Club Innovative
Learning Centre for Medicine (HKJC
ILCM)

The HKJC ILCM continues to develop excellent courses, including
the Comprehensive Simulation Educator Course, the Debriefing
Skills  for
Simulation Training in Mechanical Ventilation. They have received

Simulation Instructor Course and the Advanced
much valuable input and feedback on these courses from local
and overseas faculty, such as the Center for Medical Simulation.
A certification system has also been launched for simulation

instructors of HKJC ILCM courses.

Meanwhile, we will continue to encourage Colleges to work with the
HKJC ILCM to develop and deploy courses that are relevant to their

specialty and valuable for their trainees and Fellows.

Hong Kong Jockey Club Disaster
Preparedness and Response Institute

(HKJCDPRI)

The HKJCDPRI was established in November 2014 with a mission
to establish Hong Kong as a regional and international leader in
disaster preparedness and response training, and to promote
community resilience. Over the past 5 years, the HKJCDPRI has
facilitated collaboration towards this aim among medical and
academic institutions, government departments, non-governmental

organisations and communities in Hong Kong.
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Having secured funding for a further 3 years (till October 2022), the
HKJCDPRI has launched the next phase of its mission, “Building
Disaster Resilience in Hong Kong”, marking a pivot from ‘disaster
preparedness’ to ‘disaster risk reduction’. Following international
recommendations and frameworks, HKJCDPRI will promote a
people-centred multi-sectoral approach to disaster risk reduction
and guide society with collaborative efforts at all levels to build
resilience through managing risks.

The Way Forward

Over the past year we have made some excellent progress towards
the objectives of Academy, especially in promoting integrity, ethical
conduct, and standards; fostering education, cooperation, and
information exchange; and improving healthcare for Hong Kong
citizens. | am immensely proud that we have also been able to
achieve some of my own personal goals as President, in particular
furthering our collaboration with our international colleagues and
counterparts, and thankful for the support that these initiatives
have received.

| am sure that we can maintain this momentum in the coming
year and beyond. We are deeply thankful and appreciative of the
generous support and effort we receive from all the Past Presidents,
members of our Council and Committees, College presidents, and
our Fellows, as well as the staff of the Secretariat.

Prof. C.S. Lau

President
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Members of the Academy Council
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(as of August 2019 &= 2019 F 8 )

OFFICERS

"
President Prof. C.S. Lau Honorary Secretary Prof. Henry Chan
TE BEEHIR ZEBNE BRDTTHIR
Vice-President (General Affairs) Dr. C.C. Lau Honorary Treasurer Dr. Y.F. Chow
BlEE (—HER) R EIEEE ZBEE|E ERREL
Vice-President Prof. Gilberto Leung Editor Prof. Martin Wong
(Education and Examinations) REHHE imig HEAHF

BIER (HEREREH)

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS

ACADEMY COLLEGES

IR

Anaesthesiologists Prof. C.W. Cheung Otorhinolaryngologists Dr. Victor Abdullah
e e RS EHIR B amizH AEERE
Community Medicine Dr. Thomas Tsang Paediatricians Dr. Winnie Tse
it e BnERL R HIKEELE
Dental Surgeons Dr. Edmond Pow Pathologists Dr. Michael Chan
o fERRER A RIEEEH BOLRABE AL
Emergency Medicine Dr. Axel Siu Physicians Prof. Philip Li
SER mBREE A TR
Family Physicians Dr. David Chao Psychiatrists Dr. Roger Ng
REES [AfEReEL rEneE RNEEL
Obstetricians & Prof. T.Y. Leung Radiologists Dr. C.K. Law
Gynaecologists RIBIGHIE HETF BIRABEL
imER

Ophthalmologists Dr. Nancy Yuen Surgeons Prof. Paul Lai
ARF RNEEL FhEt BB
Orthopaedic Surgeons Dr. W.P. Yau

=EE FERELE

ELECTED MEMBERS

BIELE
Dr. P.P. Chen Prof. Gabriel Leung Dr. H.T. Luk Dr. W.L. Tang Dr. Clara Wu
B EELE REFEHIR BESUHEEE SEmELE HAAKERL

HONORARY LEGAL ADVISORS
2 e ed L

Mr. Woody Chang Mr. Jacob Tse
SRIEBEAD B e Sed=i

*Until June 2019 BEZE 201946 A
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Key Figures at a Glance
TR 5

3,126

Fellows”
B 1
(as of August 2019)
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HKAM CME/CPD PROGRAMME
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The current cycle will end in December 2019.

After the second year of the current cycle:
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# There are 73 Fellows possessing Fellowship in two or more different specialties
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Highlights of the Year
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25" Annivers ary
Celebration

T T R AR

For more than two decades, the Academy as a statutory body has
been tasked with organising, monitoring, assessing and accrediting
all medical and dental specialist training in Hong Kong. The
Academy strives to maintain high standards of postgraduate training
Much has

been accomplished since the inauguration while a lot more is in

and encourage continuing professional development.

progress or being planned for the coming years.

Slh

Academy’s 2!

Anniversary

The 25" anniversary celebration was officially launched in early
2018. A variety of celebration activities took place from February
to December, including a launch ceremony, Medical Education
Conference, media interviews, as well as intercollegiate basketball
tournament which had been highlighted in the last Annual Report.
In the second half year of 2018, the Academy continued to align the
programme around the theme “Medical Excellence for a Healthy
Future” and concluded the anniversary celebration with the finale

international congress and gala dinner.
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25" Anniversary
Congress
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Overview of the Congress

More than 500 delegates gathered at the Academy on 7-9 December
2018 for the Congress to exchange ideas on medical advances,
good practices and challenges across different specialties around
The
Congress featured multi-specialty sessions that were designed to

the theme of “Beyond 25: New Paradigms in Healthcare”.

appeal to medical professionals, researchers from all disciplines,
leaders in the profession and policy makers, etc.
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On 8 December 2018, the Opening Ceremony of the Congress
was officiated by the Hon Mrs. Carrie Lam, The Chief Executive of
the HKSAR, together with Prof. C.S. Lau, President; Dr. C.C. Lau,
Chairman of the 25™ Anniversary Organising Committee; and Prof.
Gilberto Leung, Vice-President (Education and Examinations) of the
Academy. A congratulatory video from Dr. Tedros A. Ghebreyesus,
Director-General of World Health Organization, was played at
the ceremony. Representatives from 15 Colleges impressed the
delegates with a spectacular drum show.
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Drum performance by
College representatives at the
opening ceremony of the 25"
Anniversary Congress
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(From left) Dr. C.C. Lau, Chairman of the
25" Anniversary Organising Committee;
the Hon Mrs. Carrie Lam, The Chief
Executive of the HKSAR; Prof. C.S. Lau,
President of the Academy; and Prof. Gilberto
Leung, Vice-President (Education and
Examinations) of the Academy, officiate
at the opening ceremony of the 25
Anniversary Congress
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Dr. Humayun Chaudhry delivers the Halnan Lecture

Humayun Chaudhry% A B AT W A Al 8 1) 8 e

Plenary Sessions
Halnan Lecture

The Halnan Lecture is named after the late Dr. Keith E. Halnan,
Chairman of the Working Party on Postgraduate Medical Education
and Training, which made a recommendation to the Government in
1988 that Hong Kong Academy of Medicine should be established
by statute. Dr. Humayun Chaudhry, President and Chief Executive
Officer, The Federation of State Medical Boards of the United States,
Inc. and Immediate Past Chair, International Association of Medical
Regulatory Authorities, delivered one of the Academy’s named
lectures sharing his insights on the topic, “Medical Regulation:
Supporting Technology, Protecting Patients”. The Lecture was
followed by the President’s Dinner, which gathered leaders of local
and overseas medical counterparts on 7 December 2018.

David Todd Oration

David Todd Oration was inaugurated in 1995 to pay tribute to
the Founding President of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine,
Prof. Sir David Todd, in recognition of his profound contributions
to the Academy. The Academy was privileged to have Prof. K.Y.
Yuen, Chair of Infectious Diseases, Department of Microbiology, Li
Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine, The University of Hong Kong, as
the Orator. The insightful talk on “Emerging Infectious Diseases
and Beyond” was scheduled at the Academy’s Annual Fellowship
Conferment Ceremony, held in conjunction with the Opening
Ceremony of the Congress on 8 December 2018.

CUHK-HKU Joint Lecture

Two representatives from the local medical faculties were invited to
exchange views on the topics “Intestinal Microbiota, Metabolomics
and Liver Disease: Is It You Or Your Bacteria” and “Clinical
Applications of Faecal Microbiota Transplantation: The Road

Ahead” respectively.
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Prof. K.Y. Yuen delivers the David Todd Oration
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Infectious Diseases
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Parallel Sessions

14 concurrent sessions were conducted with inspirational talks
delivered by 57 speakers from the 15 Colleges and 2 local medical
faculties. Topics presented included (English only):
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e Comprehensive Care in Sports Injury — From On-field Care to Returning to Play

¢ Advances in Colorectal Cancer Management

e Advances in Stroke Management

e Leadership and Ethical Challenges in Medical Practice

e Cardiovascular Diseases

e Common Mental Disorder

* Perioperative Medicine

e Sleep Disorder

e Fragility Fracture

* Medicine in the Digital Era

¢ Paediatric Metabolic Disease — Piecing the Puzzle

¢ Advances in Breast Cancer Management

e [nfectious Diseases

* Medical Education and Training

Free Paper Sessions

A total of 7 highest scoring abstracts were shortlisted for oral
presentations. The Best Paper Award was presented at the Closing
and Prize Presentation Ceremony held on 9 December 2018.

Post-Congress Workshop

Dr. Kym Jenkins, the past President of the Royal Australian and
New Zealand College of Psychiatrists, conducted an interactive
workshop that addressed the well-being of medical professionals,
entitled “Looking after the mental health of our own profession”,

together with members of the Academy’s Young Fellows Chapter.
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Guided Tours around the Academy’s B AR I O B E E
Simulation Centre

Over 20 delegates joined guided tours to the Hong Kong Jockey #BiB20Z2BE@ERMT MR TEMNEH
Club Innovative Learning Centre for Medicine, located on the 7"  EERAIFESREXIPLNEE
floor of the Academy, and got hands-on interactive experience. B > 2B R BRE SRS o

The Centre arranges different scenarios for
participants to experience simulation learning
BRI L2 PEATR i 5 RN BB
e

Partnerships Strengthened to Foster Academic T 52 4K B BH AR DAAR 2 224 5 1
Collaboration

During the Congress, the Academy signed a Memorandum of 1EFEZF FENHIME @ BHEMABEHEERE
Understanding (MOU) with the Korean Academy of Medical maz%TAT’Hﬁui?&E%ﬁEﬁiqﬁéggi
Sciences and renewed the collaboration with the Chinese Medical ESE  REBEHENEMSE
Association to promote academic collaboration and exchange in 7FU$¢7;|L °

medical education.

MOU signed with
Korean Academy of
Medical Sciences

BAL i [ R R R

S R (RTINS

MOU signed with Chinese
Medical Association
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Silver Jubilee Gala Dinner
SR B L W
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Government officials and Academy representatives

officiate at the Silver Jubilee Gala Dinner
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The gala dinner featured performances by some multi-talented
Academy Fellows and College representatives. The gala dinner
was officiated by officials of the HKSAR Government, including the
Guest of Honour, the Hon Matthew Cheung, The Chief Secretary
for Administration, the Hon Paul Chan, The Financial Secretary,
the Hon John Lee, Secretary for Security, and Prof. the Hon Sophia
Chan, Secretary for Food and Health. Council Members, Past
Presidents and representatives of the Academy and its 15 Colleges,
Fellows, as well as local and overseas guests joined to celebrate the
auspicious milestone of the Academy. It was a full house of more

than 230 guests to share the joyful moments.

The Academy was honoured that its achievements were widely
recognised, building strong networks with national and international
strategic partners. Such results would not have been possible

without the staunch support of the Government and various

stakeholders in the healthcare sector.

Singing performance at the Silver Jubilee
Singing perf t the Silver Jubil
Gala Dinner
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Cake-cutting and

toasting ceremony
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Local and overseas
guests join to celebrate
the auspicious
milestone of the
Academy, sharing the
joyful moments
AN b 5% — ]
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25" Anniversary website — + A A A E: http://hkam25.hkam.org.hk

25" Annual General Meeting

B/ I EFERE

The Academy held its Annual General Meeting on 7 December

2018 at James Kung Meeting Room.

The six Officers have been re-elected to serve another term of 2

years until December 2020.

The results of the election were announced at the meeting. Results

are listed below:

REBERERAFRG LM BT

Officer 8455 Post 8L

Prof. C.S. Lau President

ZEEHE B

Dr. C.C. Lau Vice-President (General Affairs)
Gl pessill ey BIEE (—%EH)

Prof. Gilberto Leung
REBBIR

Vice-President (Education and Examinations)

BER (HBELEAFEE)

Prof. Henry Chan

Honorary Secretary

BRATTEIE BEWE

Dr. Y.F. Chow Honorary Treasurer
FEIRNEE B4 HET)E

Prof. Martin Wong Editor

BEEAHE fmaE
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(From left) Dr. Y.F. Chow, Dr. C.C. Lau, Prof.
C.S. Lau, Prof. Gilberto Leung and Prof. Martin

Wong (Note: Honorary Secretary Prof. Henry

Chan was unable to attend the AGM)
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25" Annual Fellowship Conferment Ceremony

5 T B R

The 25" Annual Fellowship Conferment Ceremony was held on 8
December 2018 at the Run Run Shaw Hall. A total of 264 Academy
Fellows were conferred.

Appreciation and Recognition

During the ceremony, the Award for Distinguished Contributions
was presented to Dr. Philip Wu, a veteran banker in Hong Kong who
served the Academy in the Finance and Investment Committee for
over 18 years.

In addition, plaques of appreciation were presented to the following
former Ex Officio Members in recognition of their services and
contributions to the Academy Council:

e Prof. Fung Hong, Ex Officio Council Member
(January 2014 to January 2018)

e Prof. Lau Yu Lung, Ex Officio Council Member
(December 2015 to November 2018)

Certificates of appreciation were also presented to four staff
members of the Secretariat in recognition of their dedication and

contributions over more than 10 years of service:
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Name 7% Title E{I

Ms. Cindy Chan Administrative Assistant

BREY L TR

Ms. Judy Lam Workman (She served the Academy for 25 years)
MERE Rt WAZTEBEE (MEZTERBERBE_TAF)

Administrative Assistant (Facilities)

THBHEE (&%)

Mr. Raymond Lo
EFFREE

Administrative Assistant (IT)

TBehE (EaHR)

Ms. Maple Wong
ERBLL
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This prize aims to recognise excellence in research conducted
by doctors during specialist training. Results of the 2018 BORT

were:

Medal 2€15 Winner (College) 15##& (FIE[R)

Gold Medal Dr. Ronald Wong

et (The Hong Kong College of Orthopaedic
Surgeons)
BEXHEL (EEEREEMR)

Silver Medal Dr. Timothy Cheng

§RiE (The Hong Kong College of Pathologists)
gizEEe s (HBREEEREMR)

Bronze Medal Dr. Kelvin Wan

g (The College of Ophthalmologists

of Hong Kong)
FEMEL (HERBEER)

The Best Original Paper Award (BOPA), presented by the Editorial
Board of the Hong Kong Medical Journal, aims to encourage
original writings of good quality by doctors. Dr. Patrick Chiu and
his co-authors were awarded the 2018 BOPA for their paper titled:
“Outcomes of a pharmacist-led medication review programme for
hospitalised elderly patients”.

i 25 Afifikesy
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RIBEEXRG2ENEXESFRI
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Title of Research FZZEEH

Fibrinolysis as a Target by Vibration Therapy

to Enhance Osteoporotic Fracture Healing in a
Clinically Relevant Metaphyseal Fracture Animal
Model

Non-invasive detection of bladder cancer using
genomewide methylation and copy number
analysis

Progressive retinal nerve fiber layer (RNFL)
thinning in glaucoma: a 5-year prospective study
comparing the conventional circumpapillary
RNFL profile with a new topographic RNFL map
analysis

HERAIWXER (FEEEME) &
EEEERY  EERBBLERRES

MREIXE - 201 8F MR X R
HERKREBEENHEREFFEEERS  #X
BH A& "Outcomes of a pharmacist-
led medication review programme for

hospitalised elderly patients ; °

Prof. Martin Wong (second from the
left) presents the Best Original Paper
Award to Dr. Patrick Chiu and his
co-authors

FEHEE (F ) R R AR R A
s SCHE T b AR B A B AR RIE

1=
EH



Event Highlights 2018
2018 WHE{e R

H | September

2018 Summit Forum of China’s Standardised Medical Residency Training

201 84 [t 15 Fili A 5 b 15 ] vy 0 iy 18

A delegation of Academy representatives attended
the Summit Forum of China’s Standardised Medical
Residency Training organised by the Chinese Medical
Doctor Association (CMDA) in Beijing during 1-2
September 2018. Following last year's success in
hosting a special session of the Academy at the CMDA
Summit Forum, the delegation continued to support
and hosted two sessions to share the experience of
Hong Kong, covering the specialist training system and
training for different specialties
including medicine, surgery,
obstetrics and gynaecology,
and paediatrics, as well as on
current trends in competency
based medical education. This
collaboration with CMDA has
further fostered knowledge and
experience exchange between
the Academy and mainland
counterparts.

BRERKXEHET2018F9IR 1 E 20 HEHER
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Council Dinner with
Distinguished Young Fellows
e B & B & W

b h 475 i -

Council Members congratulated the
distinguished young Fellows on their
outstanding
Council Dinner held on 20 September
2018.

20189200 RBEEERN
ME LMERLKRBENFSRL

achievements at the
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1 O H | October

“Support to Enact a

Total Ban on E-cigarettes
and Other New Smoking
Products” Press Conference

[ SCHp 2 I A8 1k o6 SR B W i e i | R

The Academy joined other tobacco control groups,
academia, medical and health professionals, parents
and education sector, youth service organisations,
patient groups at a press conference on 15 October
2018 to urge the Government to put the legislation

1 1 H | November

Career Talk on 2019/20 Hospital
Authority Resident Training Program
2019/20 % e 5 B 7 5 Be B 2k 55 91 51 #

— i S P

The Academy co-organised a Career Talk for interns
with Hospital Authority on 17 November 2018 at the
Hospital Authority Building featuring highlights from
the centrally-coordinated
resident trainees. Prof. Gilberto Leung, Vice-President
(Education and Examinations), attended the event and
briefed the interns on postgraduate specialist training.
The Career Talk attracted over 150 interns and they
were very enthusiastic about specialist training.

2018F11R17TH  BEHEBLCEERAHIES
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recruitment exercise for
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forward for a total ban on e-cigarettes and other new
smoking products in order to protect the public from
tobacco hazards.

20184108 15H - BEHRITEEEE « 27 -
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1 2 H | December

Postgraduate Medical Education Forum in

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay

Area: Improving Clinical Teaching Skills of
~ m . . . ] m o .

Core Trainers in Resident Training

LR IR S SR AR R BB BT o L A AT i
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The Academy, as one of the co-organisers, supported the
Postgraduate Medical Education Forum in Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area hosted by the
Chinese Medical Doctor Association in Shenzhen on 15-
16 December 2018. Prof. C.S. Lau, President, delivered a
welcome address in the opening ceremony and a keynote
presentation on the current development of postgraduate
medical training in Hong Kong.
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Event Highlights 2019

2019 {GEIfE &

O 1 H | January

Seminar on “Challenges to Attain Global
Health Equity”

[ BB 2 Bk A AP S PR | B i

The Academy organised the Seminar on “Challenges
to Attain Global Health Equity” on 10 January 2019,
gathering experts to discuss the challenges of global
health equity from a territory-wide level to an individual
physician level, and its association with rapid climate
change and disaster preparedness. The seminar
attracted more than 50 participants.

BEN2019F1R10EEMRTY 'ERE2RALEFF
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() 2 H | February

Assessment Workshop on
Postgraduate Training

R IR AR

The Education Committee of the Academy organised
an Assessment Workshop on 16-17 February 2019.
The workshop aimed to help Colleges to explore
their specific assessment needs and challenges and
to discuss assessment principles, blueprinting and
specific methods relevant to their training. A total of
25 participants attended the workshop.

Symposium on Healthcare Facilities
ymy
Management

B B A

Symposium on Healthcare Facilities Management 2019

B e IR I W 2019

19 & 26 January 2013

The Symposium, jointly organised by the Academy and
the Department of Health was successfully held on 19
and 26 January 2019, gathering over 400 healthcare
professionals and operators of private healthcare
facilities. The Symposium featured presentations on
safety-related legislation, as well as updates on Private
Healthcare Facilities Ordinance and the Voluntary
Health Insurance Scheme.
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Event Highlights 2019
2019 {HEEHR

O 2 H | February

Media Spring Luncheon
BiEEE

The Academy hosted the media spring luncheon on 18
February 2019. The event featured presentations by
speakers from the Hong Kong College of Emergency
Medicine and The Hong Kong College of Family
Physicians sharing thoughts on the development of
primary healthcare and the training roles of the Colleges
in District Health Centres. Prof. C.S. Lau, President
and Prof. Gilberto Leung,
Vice-President (Education and
Examinations), also shared the
Academy’s upcoming plans
including the establishment of
the Professionalism and Ethics
Committee and its work in the
Greater Bay Area.

HKAM Sichuan Study Tour
s H B P 3
o SO 1] 2% 2 A i

To promote medical exchange and enhance young
Fellows’ understanding of healthcare development in
China, the Academy co-organised a Study Tour with
the Coordination Department of the Liaison Office of the
Central People’s Government in the HKSAR to Sichuan
from 27 February to 3 March 2019. Led by Dr. C.C. Lau,
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Vice-President (General Affairs), the group consisting
of 25 young Fellows from various Colleges participated
in various activities including visits to local government
departments and relevant health institutions and
organisations as well as local district health centres.
They also visited places to learn about the history and
infrastructural developments of Sichuan.
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()3 H | March

Establishment of the Professionalism
and Ethics Committee

B B TS m P B & or

In order to further enhance the education and training
on medical professionalism and ethical practice
among Fellows and specialist trainees, the Academy
announced the establishment of the Professionalism
and Ethics Committee on 16 March 2019.

RE—DTMBETREMEIIEEEREZ X LA
BERSEMBEME - BFER201943H16H
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Meeting with Food and

Health Bureau
S Yy K i AR R o

Officers of the Academy and College Presidents
and representatives attended a meeting invited
by the Food and Health Bureau on 28 March
2019. Discussions were fruitful with constructive
feedback on specialist training and other healthcare
manpower issues given to the Secretary for Food and
Health and other officials of the Bureau.

“Kthical Issues with Advanced
Biotechnology” Conference
OJ

[ Se 3 A Wy 500G Y i BRI | ok

The conference jointly organised by the Academy
and The University of Chicago Center in Hong Kong
was successfully on 16 March 2019. The theme of
the conference was “Ethical Issues with Advanced
Biotechnology”. Distinguished overseas and local
speakers discussed various ethical issues relevant to
advanced biotechnology across Western and Chinese
cultures. The conference was conducted in an interactive
case-based format and attracted around 80 participants.
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Event Highlights 2019
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5" Medical Education Conference
iy B B ol 25 Ay
B BEHE g%

The Academy organised the 5" Medical Education
Conference on 4 May 2019, with the theme “Curriculum
Reform”. The conference attracted around 290
participants.

BEN2019F5 4R THELEREABEE £
B TRENE ) 0 FERSIN29022ME -

CONFERENCE 2078 L 2
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Establishment of the SZ-HK Medical

Specialist Training Centre
GRS B2 HRL RS S O Bl or

With support from the Shenzhen Municipal Health
Commission, the SZ-HK Medical Specialist Training
Centre was formally established by the Academy and
Shenzhen Medical Doctor Association on 2 July 2019.
Representatives of the Academy, Shenzhen Municipal
People's Government, Shenzhen Municipal Health
Commission, Chinese Medical Doctor Association,
Shenzhen Medical Doctor Association, HKU Li Ka
Shing Faculty of Medicine and HKU-Shenzhen Hospital
officiated the unveiling ceremony held in Shenzhen.
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Meeting with Chinese Medical
Doctor Association

S v o] 5 1% AT B ok

Officers of the Academy attended a meeting with the
Vice President Qi Xue-jin and representatives of Chinese
Medical Doctor Association (CMDA) in Shenzhen on
5 May 2019. The Academy representatives shared
experience and suggestions regarding CMDA's plan to
establish a Chinese academy.

BEHFEN201945R 5 AFERYI L B B AN iR & 725
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Officers of the Academy as well as Presidents and
representatives of Colleges also attended the ceremony.
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The First Hong Kong-Shenzhen
Simulation Education Conference

JoE 7 9 % R I Rt 0 R T

HKU-Shenzhen Hospital and Guangdong Medical
Doctor Association organised The First Hong Kong-
Shenzhen Simulation Education Conference on
7-8 July 2019. The Academy was one of the co-
organisers of the conference. Honorary Director and
representatives of HKJC ILCM delivered presentations
on simulation and faculty development and hosted a
one-day workshop covering knowledge and techniques
required for simulation education and debriefing.
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Signing of Memorandum of
Understanding with Macao Academy of
Medicine

Y B2 B R B
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The Academy and Macao Academy of Medicine (MAM)
signed a Memorandum of Understanding to extend the
collaboration on specialist training between the two
academieson 13 July 2019. On the same day, Officers of
the Academy as well as Presidents and representatives
of its Colleges attended the Inauguration of the MAM
cum Fellowship Conferment Ceremony. Prof. C.S. Lau,
President, delivered the keynote lecture on the topic of
“Disruptions in Medicine” at the ceremony.

BERRFIREENERN2019F7THI13AEES
ERSHE > LEEE S cEAESEREININGIE - [/
B BEHFENIRBLEMEREAREE Y IR
BEEEMEREHEERTRREN - BEXR
FEEARAHR LIEETERERZE  EaEB
B TBEINTE, -



Event Highlights 2019
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()8H August

Meeting with Head of National Cancer
Centre Dr. He Jie

B [ 5% g i o0 T2 A R e 1 B

Head of National Cancer Centre of PRC Dr. He Jie
visited the Academy on 27 August 2019 and met with
Prof. C.S. Lau, President, and Dr. Y.F. Chow, Honorary
Treasurer as well as Presidents or representatives of
The College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong, The
Hong Kong College of Otorhinolaryngologists, The
Hong Kong College of Pathologists, Hong Kong College
of Physicians and Hong Kong College of Radiologists.
They exchanged the views of the developments in
oncology among different specialties.
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2019 Summit Forum of China’s
Standardised Medical Residency
Training
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dieed bi-gical Resbdency Tralning

The Academy delegation consisting of Officers and
College Presidents or representatives attended the
Summit Forum of China’'s Standardised Medical
Residency Training organised by the Chinese Medical
Doctor Association (CMDA) on 30-31 August 2019.
Representatives of The Hong Kong College of Family
Physicians and Hong Kong College of Physicians
delivered presentations on research in general
practitioners as well as physician training and
assessment respectively. In addition, representatives
of The Hong Kong College of Obstetricians and
Gynaecologists organised a workshop on Objective
Structured Clinical Examination (OSCE).
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Council

The Council comprises 26 members, including 6 Officers, 15
ex-officio members (College Presidents) and 5 elected Council
members. The 2-year term of the 6 re-elected Officers began on
7 December 2018.
meetings mainly included certification for specialist registration;

Business transacted at the regular Council

endorsement of papers and reports of the Council’s Committees;
deliberation on different healthcare policies and consultation;
consideration of mainland and overseas collaborations; and debates
on matters related to the Colleges and their training programmes,
and so on.

The Council also discussed and prepared submissions to the
HKSAR Government in response to the consultation on healthcare
policies or particular matters of public interests, and suggested
measures with regard to those policies or matters. Colleges were
invited to provide inputs, which were incorporated into the written
submissions.

No. of Council meetings held
(e} O & & 223
GHEEEERENE

(09/2018-08/2019)

This year, the Academy extended its continued support to the Hong
Kong Council on Smoking and Health (COSH) which advocated a
total ban on e-cigarettes and other new tobacco products and urged
forimmediate passage of the Smoking (Public Health) (Amendment)
Bill 2019. The Council also conveyed views and responses on the
Budget and Policy Address to the HKSAR Government.

Officials of the HKSAR Government and

organisations and institutions such as the Food and Health Bureau,

representatives of

Department of Health and Hospital Authority were invited to meet
the Council on several occasions, mainly to provide background
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information or share details with members concerning specific
agenda items that required Colleges’ involvement or members’
inputs. In October 2018, Dr. W.L. Cheung, Project Director of
Chinese Medicine Hospital Project Office of the Food and Health
Bureau made a presentation and collected comments on the
proposed development of the Chinese Medicine Hospital.

In April 2018, the Medical Registration (Amendment) Ordinance
2018 was enacted. The Academy has two additional seats
nominated and elected by Academy Fellows in accordance with the
Academy’s regulations and procedures. The two representatives
nominated by the Council and appointed by the Chief Executive
would be unchanged under the Ordinance. There is now a total of 4
Academy'’s seats in the Medical Council of Hong Kong (MCHK). An
election was conducted in July 2018, and Dr. C.P. Cheung and Dr.
Danny Lee were elected. The election results were subsequently
announced in September 2018. In addition, the Academy welcomed
the decision of the MCHK to exempt the internship arrangement of
non-locally trained specialists in May 2019, hoping that it could
help relieve manpower shortage in public health sector. The
Academy will continue to play an important role in safeguarding
the professional standards of the medical profession in order to
help protect the health of the community through its representation
in the MCHK.

Manpower shortage in the public sector has been a burning issue
for many years. The Government conducts manpower planning and
projection for healthcare professionals once every three years. A new
round of manpower projection exercise has commenced, and the
School of Public Health of The University of Hong Kong is appointed
to conduct the research. In late 2018, the School’s representatives
presented their proposals on scope and methodology to the Council
and sought support from the Academy to provide data to facilitate
the study. The Academy reiterated the need to engage all Colleges
so as to conduct a qualitative analysis which could adequately
reflect current workload issues and services provided by medical

specialists.
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In March 2019, the Food and Health Bureau held a meeting with the
Council to discuss matters about specialist training and manpower.
All Colleges were encouraged to review and consider whether
flexibility could be allowed to admit non-locally trained doctors to be
basic or higher specialist trainees to undertake respective training,
as a solution to the imminent service demand surge. Some Colleges
were invited to support the territory-wide development of primary
healthcare services in Hong Kong by providing training to general
practitioners.

The Academy strengthened ties with the Mainland counterparts to
promote collaboration on specialist training in the Greater Bay Area
through frequent, multi-directional exchanges. On 2 July 2019, after
a series of dialogues with Shenzhen counterparts, the Academy
and the Shenzhen Medical Doctor Association have officially set
up the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Medical Specialist Training Centre,
based in The University of Hong Kong Shenzhen Hospital. The
Advisory Committee of the Centre is co-chaired by Prof. C.S. Lau,
President of the Academy, and Mr. Yang Zhuo-xin, President of
the Shenzhen Medical Doctor Association. The first meeting was
held on the same day to discuss the composition of the committee,
direction of the Centre and collaboration with different specialties.
Presidents or representatives of Colleges also participated in the

unveiling ceremony and meeting.

On 13 July 2019, the Macao Academy of Medicine (MAM)
formed under the Health Bureau of Macao SAR Government was
inaugurated to promote and strengthen postgraduate medical
education and training. The Council was invited to attend the
inauguration and its Fellowship Conferment Ceremony. Before
the inauguration, the two academies signed a Memorandum of
Understanding to enhance collaboration, witnessed by Prof. Sophia
Chan, Secretary for Food and Health of the HKSAR Government,
Dr. Alexis Tam, Secretary for Social Affairs and Culture of the Macao
SAR Government, government officials of Hong Kong and Macao

as well as representatives of the two academies.

The Academy has continued active participation in the annual
forum organised by the Chinese Medical Doctor Association in
Beijing, sharing experience at a special session and delivering
presentations by representatives of several Colleges. During the
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year, the Academy also had exchange opportunities with different
organisations such as Chinese Medical Association, Guangdong
Medical Doctor Association, Peking Union Medical College Hospital,
First Affiliated Hospital of Guangzhou Medical University and The
Seventh Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University, and etc.

Following the signing of the Memorandum of Understanding with
the Korean Academy of Medical Sciences in December 2018,
Prof. C.S. Lau, President, and Prof. Gilberto Leung, Vice-President
(Education and Examinations), were invited to attend its annual
seminar for medical exchanges with various member societies
and discuss collaborative initiatives. The tripartite relationship with
the Academy of Medicine of Malaysia (AMM) and the Academy of
Medicine, Singapore (AMS) continues. The 4" AMM-AMS-HKAM
Tripartite Congress will be held at the Academy in December 2019
in conjunction with 53 Singapore-Malaysia Congress of Medicine
and Hong Kong Primary Care Conference 2019.

During the past year, the regular Annual General Meeting and an
Extraordinary General Meeting to admit Academy Fellows were
held on 8 December 2018 and 20 June 2019 respectively. An
e-portfolio system is being developed to maintain training records
for Fellows and specialist trainees. The Academy would continue
to consolidate international collaborative efforts in raising standards
of postgraduate medical education and training, and equivalency of
each other's CME programme.

Committees

Education Committee

Continuing Medical Education (CME) / Continuous Professional
Development (CPD)

The Academy implemented its mandatory CME for Fellows since
1996. The 8" cycle started on 1 January 2017. According to the
records in the ICMECPD system (11 Colleges involved), about 95%
of Fellows have at least obtained 40 points, and about 54% have
obtained 90 points or more, after the second year of the cycle.
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Since 1 January 2008, all Colleges have capped the passive CME/
CPD points allowed per cycle at 75 points or below. The current
cycle will end on 31 December 2019 and the CME/CPD Guidelines
for 2020-22 will be updated.

CME Subcommittee

Under the Education Committee, a CME Subcommittee was
established to take care of matters relating to the CME programme
launched by the Medical Council of Hong Kong (MCHK), which
is formally known as “CME Programme for Practising Doctors
who are not taking CME Programme for Specialists” (MCHK CME
Programme). This Subcommittee vets and awards CME points for
activities organised by CME providers. It also plans and offers, with
support from Colleges, yearly dedicated CME activities for registrants
of the Programme, including those of other CME administrators.

The Subcommittee is currently chaired by Dr. David Chao.

MCHK CME Programme

This Programme was introduced by MCHK in 2001 for doctors who
were not taking CME programme for specialists. The Academy
was appointed Programme Administrator, Accreditor and Provider
for this programme. The CME subcommittee formed under the

Education Committee takes care of this programme.

As at 31 August 2019, there were 563 doctors registered with the
Academy, either directly or via the Colleges, for the MCHK CME
programme.

The Academy has provided 3,110 hours of CME including those
CME activities organised by Colleges and opened up for non-
Fellows from 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019.
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Number of Activities and Hours Organised by the Academy for the MCHK CME Programme

(September 2018 — August 2019)

BRH A R R B O A B E S P R ay A s H A R (2018 4E 9 HE 20194E 8 H)

Category Event Count CME Hours
85 RIEHE MEAEEE B ERFE (/\EF)
g;;ése 73 315
Eiiiussion 5 14
Ay &
S;}lf;t“dy 31 128
%ﬂ;\:op 36 135
;é)éAL 1,624 3,110
New Subspecialty HERAITREF)

The Education Committee and Council have approved one new
subspecialty: “Paediatric Endocrinology” under the Hong Kong
College of Paediatricians. It has subsequently been approved by
MCHK for the Specialist Register.

Assessment Workshop

Two assessment workshops were organised for College’s personnel
who are responsible for examination and assessment in February
and July 2019. They aimed to provide Colleges with an opportunity
to keep abreast of the good practices in assessment, share the
assessment experiences and discuss assessment standards and
methods relevant to postgraduate training.

Credentialling Committees

15 Colleges have established their own Credentialling Committees
and are gradually identifying and developing their own credentialled

procedures.
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Review of Guidelines on Procedural Sedation

A working group on Review of Guidelines on Procedural Sedation
was formed in August 2017 to review the Academy’s prevailing
Guidelines on Procedural Sedation. With inputs from different
Colleges and reference to related best practices for procedures
and guidelines concerning sedation and anaesthesia, it has been

endorsed by the Council and effective from 1 April 2019.

Best Original Research by Trainees (BORT)

This prize aims to recognise excellence in research conducted by
doctors during specialist training. Results of the 2018 BORT were:

EIRIE AR RIS
ZEEN201TESAR Y TN -
DEREEERTERREF MTEFREN
185! » FESI RBARIBELRNER K
2EGRER / MEEFNEERES
BNIESIFRER] >  BERESEE
BIEETARAVIES] - WHR2019F 4818
R e

RIFEBEFAIMATRE
HRBEEAXRGZ2ENESEEHR]
AT A HES B4R - 2018

FRAEAZERAIMERENERIT ¢

Medal Winner (College) Title of Research

3L BEEE (HH2R) m7ERE R

Gold Medal Dr. Ronald Wong Fibrinolysis as a Target by Vibration Therapy

ot (The Hong Kong College of Orthopaedic to Enhance Osteoporotic Fracture Healing in a
Surgeons) Clinically Relevant Metaphyseal Fracture Animal
BEXGEL (BHEREERR) Model

Silver Medal Dr. Timothy Cheng Non-invasive detection of bladder cancer using

§RIE (The Hong Kong College of Pathologists) genomewide methylation and copy number

HELTREL (HERESINER)

analysis

Dr. Kelvin Wan

(The College of Ophthalmologists
of Hong Kong)

FrEmeEL (HBRMEER)

Bronze Medal
$REE

Progressive retinal nerve fiber layer (RNFL)
thinning in glaucoma: a 5-year prospective study
comparing the conventional circumpapillary
RNFL profile with a new topographic RNFL map
analysis

Certification for Specialist Registration (CSR)

According to the Medical Registration Ordinance (MRO) and
Dentists Registration Ordinance (DRO), a non-HKAM Fellow doctor
or dentist who wishes to have his/her name included in the Specialist
Register of Medical/Dental Council of Hong Kong must be certified
by the Academy to have training and qualification equivalent to that
required of an Academy Fellow in the relevant specialty. A CSR
applicant will also be required to submit evidence of his/her CME
or CPD activities to the Academy for vetting.

During September 2018 — August 2019, a total of 7 applications for
CSR were successfully certified.
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Updates on Accreditation of Training Units, Training Documents,
and CME/CPD Guidelines

During the year, the Committee had endorsed updates submitted
by various Colleges on their training units, training documents, and
CMECPD guidelines.

Finance and Investment Committee

The Committee met twice during the year and continued its role
to monitor and review the Academy’s financial status and cash
position. Recommendations have been continually made by the
Committee to the Council for the Academy’s long-term financial
planning, which is crucial for preparing the anticipated increasing
overheads and building maintenance works in the coming years.
Such included the increase of Fellow annual subscription fee by
10% in 2019 which was in accordance with the regular review
mechanism every 3 years (and the last increase was in 2016).
The Committee would continue its role and make suggestions
proactively to strive for financial sustainability for the Academy.

During the year, the Committee also reviewed the investment
strategies and made suggestions for the adjustments to the
Academy’s investment portfolio, in view of the fast-changing
financial market affected by different factors locally and globally.
The Committee would continue to adopt a prudent approach on

investment.

House Committee

Facilities

During the past year, a major project for the Academy building was
the external wall refurbishment works, which would be conducted
in 2 phases. The first phase of works (mainly on the external wall
of Run Run Shaw Hall facing Wong Chuk Hang Road) commenced
in April and was duly completed in August 2019 with a refreshing
new look. Works for the second phase would begin in January and
scheduled to be completed in June 2020.

Other maintenance works held in the year included the installation
of infrared sensor safety edge system for all the lifts to improve
operational safety, the installation of additional CCTV surveillance
cameras at the LG/F car park for better monitoring and security
reasons as well as repair works for some damages of facilities
caused by Typhoon Mangkhut in September 2018.
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To ensure occupational health and well-being of staff working within
the building, the Academy participated in the Indoor Air Quality
(IAQ) certification scheme under the IAQ Information Centre
of Environmental Protection Department. The inspection of air
quality was done in June 2019 and a “Good Class” certificate was
awarded.

A new vending machine with a greater variety of drinks and
snacks as well as a hot coffee machine were installed on 2/F lobby
area in July 2019 to accommodate service needs of Fellows and
visitors.

Some basic renovation works for the vacant unit of the Academy’s
Archives Office at Hing Wai Industrial Centre was completed in the
second half of 2019. More storage spaces would be available for
the Academy and Colleges in future.

Information Technology System

The Academy developed a payment gateway for Fellows to
iCMECPD. Over
1,800 Fellows settled the payment by credit card through the

settle their annual subscriptions online via

system in 2018. The payment method was welcomed by Fellows
with an increase of online transactions in 2019 (over 2,500 as of
30 June 2019).

In 2018-19, a number of AV/IT enhancement initiatives were
carried out, including the replacement of obsoleted handheld
microphones, installation of core network switch for failover and
upgrade of the existing system for membership administration,
network migration for security monitoring system and cloud storage

as well as enhancement of wi-fi coverage for visitors.

An HKAM Network Portal was developed to facilitate access
to online services by outside parties and collaborators. Domain
name for different online services would also be aligned with that
of Academy’s common format. IT service packages for Colleges
were also getting popular with more subscriptions and enquiries

received.
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Human Resources

Staff well-being and wellness remained a high priority. The
Academy continued to adopt family-friendly employment practices,
in particular the extension of maternity leave from 10 weeks to 14
weeks and review of overtime provision. The Secretariat strives
to uphold the core value and motto, “TOGETHER, WE work

professionally in serving the Academy with pride and integrity”.

Membership Services

The Academy has made continuous efforts to enhance services
provided to Fellows. 3 interest groups of the Social Subcommittee,
which was formed under House Committee in April 2019, have
planned a series of activities. The purpose for networking is to
enhance cohesion amongst Fellows and strengthen sense of
belonging to the Academy.

6‘?@“"’”-\

List of activities being co-ordinated include:
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Interest Group Activity Date (DD/MM/YY)
/A ] HES (H/ B /%)
Culinary & Catering Fellows’ Get-Together
o - 14/09/2019
BIE LR FrtAEE
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine and
\Sﬁf%;%\%e””ess Medical Alumni Golf Tournament 09/10/2019
e ERREERNEREENEL FRRNKE
Nature & Heritage Walk To be announced
TINRE— b R R BEAT
Blood Donation
- 06/12/2019
B
Intercollegiate Basketball Tournament February-March 2020
DRI BRER LB 20202 AE 3 A
Arts & Culture Organic Farm Family Outing To be announced
XA EaZa iy BHHERTH BEAT

Photo-taking during Nature & Heritage Walk
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To be announced
BENT
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Enriched dining experience was offered across the year. Yum Cha
is still one of the Academy’s most popular events, particularly on
Mother's Day with over 300 Fellows and their family members or
friends attended this year. A wide variety of classic dishes and
snacks of Hong Kong were served over an afternoon tea buffet on
Father’s Day. Our first tea-pairing lunch introduced in July 2018
with limited seats available as a trial was very well received by
Fellows with great feedback. To meet the overwhelming demands
for similar culinary experience, another session of a larger scale was
conducted in April 2019. Over 100 participants gathered to learn
the art of tea making demonstrated by a renowned tea sommelier
and how to best combine a variety of food with different flavours of
tea. It was another successful dining event. Fellows enjoy access to

the Academy Lounge, which is ideal for private functions.

Exclusive offers on goods and services were solicited for Fellows,
including discounted festive delicacies of Chinese New Year, Dragon
Boat Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival, hotels’ accommodation
and dining privileges, mobile telecommunication services, etc.

Various updates on membership services were disseminated
through eblasts, which were also published on the Academy’s
website.

Events

The Event Team has continued to promote Academy’s venues by
approaching different potential clients including other professional
bodies, and work closely with the Hong Kong Tourism Board to build
up linkage with overseas event organisers. Several international
conferences were held at the Academy building as a result of
the marketing efforts. Meanwhile, the Booking policy for other
organisations was relaxed for bookings during non-peak months.

Bookings from the Academy or Colleges remain top priorities.
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The Event Team continued to assist the Academy, its Hong Kong
Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and Response Institute
(HKJCDPRI) and Hong Kong Jockey Club Innovative Learning
Centre for Medicine (HKJC ILCM) as well as Colleges to organise
events or provide secretariat and on-site support to their events.

Event Date (DD/MM/YY)
EENRER (B/ B/ &)

17/11/2018

EEMENEERDNEE BB EES
KEREEEHN PO  EAEEEZR
MBEREEINIPLLBEOMNERE
MEBN AL RS REUEENIRS

XARIRFS
Event Name Organiser
EEIR B0

Career Talk on 2019/20 HA Resident
Training Program

2019/20 Bt EE BB A RF B8 —mERE

Hospital Authority and Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine

BREERAEEBEINER

7-9/12/2018

25" Anniversary Congress
“thHRAFLEREE

Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
BEBEER S

10/01/2019

Seminar on “Challenges to Attain Global Health Equity”

FERDREE TSNS, BEIHE

Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
BEEREERN SR

19, 26/01/2019

Symposium on Healthcare Facilities
Management 2019
BRI E RS 2019

Department of Health and Hong
Kong Academy of Medicine
BFAEERBBREERER

“Ethical Issues with Advanced Biotechnology”

The University of Chicago Center
in Hong Kong and Hong Kong

16/03/2019 Conference Academy of Medicine
MSEAMRTMIERE ) 83 CMNFREFBRLLEBES
EyRL 1
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
04/05/2019 5" Medical Education Conference and HKJC ILCM
FhEEZEHBEEE ERRBEERNERLAERESS
RIS EE 2R I Hh
Annual Conference on Disaster Preparedness and HKJCDPRI
29/06/2019 Response 2019 EHE o K R e

2019 FRERIEEETE

AR

Membership Committee

The Academy received 142 nominations for Fellowship from the 15
Colleges between July and December 2018. All nominations were
vetted by the Membership Committee and recommended to the
Council for approval. Those new Fellows were formally admitted at
the Annual General Meeting on 7 December 2018.
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Council and Committees’ Reports

be B & H o R AT B a il

From January to June 2019, 115 nominations for Fellowship
were vetted by the Committee and were recommended to the
Council for approval. The nominations were formally endorsed at
the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 20 June 2019. The
Fellowship will be conferred at the Annual Fellowship Conferment

Ceremony in December.

Professionalism and Ethics Committee

To further promote professionalism and ethical practice among
Fellows and specialist trainees, the Academy formally established
a Professionalism and Ethics Committee in March 2019. The
Committee is to assist the Academy Council by providing advice on
matters related to professionalism and ethical issues pertaining to
the practice of specialty medicine and dentistry, public policy and
other Academy matters.

In the coming years, the Committee will organise a series of
seminars and workshops for training in different topics to
enhance the standard of medical professionalism and ethics of
Fellows and specialist trainees. To facilitate this, the Committee
has established four Task Forces to cover the areas of Advance
Directives;  Disclosure, Apology and Alternative Dispute
Resolution; Genetics and Genomics; and Social Media. The
Committee will also formulate best practice guidelines in different

areas from the perspectives of professionalism and ethics.

Young Fellows Chapter

The third term of the Young Fellows Chapter (YFC) began on 1 July
2019. Members, nominated by the 15 Colleges, were all conferred
HKAM Fellowship within the last 10 years. The main purpose of
the YFC is to nurture new leaders by involving young Fellows in the
Academy’s activities and affairs for them to better understand the
Academy’s objectives and work.
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In February 2019, Dr C.C. Lau, Vice-President (General Affairs)
of the Academy, led a delegation with 25 young Fellows to
Sichuan province for a 5-day exchange programme. Participants
exchanged medical knowledge and learnt more about healthcare
development in the Mainland through visits to various hospitals and
healthcare organisations, including West China Hospital of Sichuan
University. The delegation visited the Sichuan University-The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University Institute for Disaster Management
and Reconstruction, which was opened in 2013. It is the first
institute established in the Mainland focusing on research into
preventing disasters, minimising the impact of natural disasters
and implementing post-disaster reconstruction. A special visit to
the Chengdu Research Base of Giant Panda Breeding was also
organised, together with few other cultural and historic sites.

YFC has been supportive of Academy’s work in various aspects from
committees’ affairs and scientific meetings to networking activities.
During the 25" Anniversary Congress, YFC conducted a workshop
jointly with the past President of the Royal Australasian and New
Zealand College of Psychiatrists, Dr. Kim Jenkins. Discussion on
the topic “Looking After the Mental Health of Our Own Profession”
was fruitful with sharing of views on work-related stress and coping
strategies. To further examine the psychological exhaustion of
young Fellows and trainees in Hong Kong, a well-being study was
conducted during February and May 2019. Through the estimation
of the prevalence of burnout and other related health problems, it
was hoped to identify areas which can help sustain good health and
well-being for all young doctors. Over 450 completed questionnaires

were received, and a detailed analysis is being conducted.

In May 2019, YFC was again invited to co-ordinate a panel
discussion at the 5" Medical Education Conference around
the theme “Curriculum Reform from Young Fellows / Trainees
Perspectives”. Members are also dedicated to the co-ordination of
activities to connect Fellows of different specialties, building ties

and strengthening bonds.
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Council and Committees’ Reports
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Election

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Ordinance,
an election has been conducted for five Council members. The
election notice and nomination form were sent to all Fellows on 24
June 2019. Five nominations were received by the deadline of 23
August 2019 and particulars of the validly nominated Fellows are

BB i
o

RIE (BEBE2ENEBRKEHFH) © 54
RBEEZESRBTEHERESL - BER
20196 A24HAMM Bk & HIESER
MERIREARE  RZHE201948A
23R - MERILWEISHBRIRA
& BIRARTMERMT :

as follows:
Nominee &2 &R+ College(s) to which the nominee belongs Ff/EH R
Dr. H.Y. So Anaesthesiologists
BRERRE L FREER
Dr. Clara Wu Emergency Medicine
KRB L SER
Dr. Victor Tang Pathologists
SiEfmEEL FRIRER
Dr. Julian Fong Radiologists
FERICEL RERES
Dr. H.T. Luk Surgeons
BESUHEEL SR

Prof. Henry Chan

Honorary Secretary

44 HKAM Annual Report 2019

o WAPIE; €5
ZEWE



The Academy’s

Divisions / Initiatives
B/ HH




Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Press

A 9 B 5 R 2 e i Ak

The Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Press (HKAM Press) was
established in October 2002. As an integral part of the Academy, the

HKAM Press publishes medical journals, newsletters, monographs,

and congress packages for various Colleges and societies.

Publications

The HKAM Press currently publishes six periodical journals: the
Asian Journal of Gerontology & Geriatrics; the East Asian Archives
of Psychiatry; the Hong Kong Journal of Gynaecology, Obstetrics
and Midwifery; the Hong Kong Journal of Radiology; the Hong Kong
Journal of Ophthalmology; and the Hong Kong Medical Journal, as
well as two newsletters: Academy FOCUS and Eye Opener.

The HKAM Press was appointed publisher for the conference
abstract book of the Hong Kong Ophthalmological Symposium in
2018, and also produced a commemorative booklet for an exhibition
at the Hong Kong Museum of Medical Sciences celebrating the 25t
Anniversary of The College of Ophthalmologists of Hong Kong and
the 65" Anniversary of The Hong Kong Ophthalmological Society
in 2019.

Hong Kong Medical Journal (HKM)J)

It has been another busy and productive year for the HKMJ, with

the key highlights summarised as follows.
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Circulation

As of 31 August 2019, around 740 Academy Fellows receive the
print copy of HKMJ. Together with about 640 members of the Hong
Kong Medical Association and other individuals who subscribe to
the printed edition, the total circulation is around 1,400.

Online access

All Fellows are enrolled in the e-Alert service (unless they have
opted out) and receive an email with the table of contents when
each new issue is available online. In the past year, the HKMJ
website has enjoyed an average of 19,000 visitors each month.

Editorial Board

The Editorial Board of the HKMJ currently has 7 Senior Editors
and 46 Editors and Advisors. Each Senior Editor is responsible for
coordinating one of the various sections of the Journal. The Editors
nominate reviewers and make recommendations regarding the
papers submitted. The Advisors lend their professional expertise to
provide statistical or methodological guidance for submitted papers,
or other aspects of journal management. Under the leadership of
the Editor-in-Chief, the Editorial Board establishes and defines the
policies of the Journal; makes editorial decisions; and formulates
clear guidelines for authors, reviewers, and the editorial office
to ensure smooth operation of the Journal. The Editorial Board
members are committed to enhance the quality and relevance of
the Journal by expediting articles on current hot topics and applying
rigorous methodological review of submitted articles.

Impact Factor

The HKAM Press is proud that the impact factor for the HKMJ
has again increased, to 1.588, according to the 2018 Journal
Citation Reports released by Clarivate Analytics. Appreciation goes
to all Editorial Board members, authors, and reviewers for their

unwavering support.
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Healthcare for Society

For more than six years, the “Doctor for Society” section of HKMJ
has featured interviews with medical doctors to showcase their
substantial voluntary contributions to society above and beyond
their line of work. As part of a mutually beneficial scheme, these
interviews are conducted by local medical students appointed as
reporters by the Editorial Board. Starting from 2019, this popular
section has been renamed to “Healthcare for Society”, to widen its
appeal and to embrace all types of professions related to medicine,
including personnel in fields such as nursing, midwifery, sanitation,
pharmacy, physiotherapy, laboratory medicine, and occupational
therapy. It is hoped that these leaders and committed allied health
professionals can be exemplary models for our young generation
to follow.

International Publishing Standards

Quality, transparency, and adherence to standards continue to
increase at the HKMJ. In line with international recommendations
from organisations such as International Committee of Medical
Editors (ICMJE)
(COPE), authors are expected to show clearly that their research

Journal and Council for Publication Ethics
was conducted ethically and honestly. In addition, the journal has
obligations to ensure that published articles are of the highest
quality and to follow publishing industry best practices, such as
those described by Directory of Open Access Journals (DOAJ), of
which HKMJ is a member. To verify that all articles are free from
plagiarism, each article submitted to HKMJ is checked using a
plagiarism detection service. Since July 2019 HKMJ has upgraded
the plagiarism checking software used. Furthermore, to ensure the
valuable work of contributors remains accessible in any eventuality,
HKMJ has enlisted a preservation service to provide a digital archive
of HKMJ articles.

Prize for Best Original Research by

young Fellows (BORF)

The Prize for Best Original Research by young Fellows (BORF) was
successfully launched this year, with an aim to recognise excellence
in outstanding research conducted and led by young Fellows.
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Hong Kong Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and Response Institute
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AL HKJCDPRI

Hong Kong Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and Response
Institute (HKJCDPRI) was set up in 2014 to strengthen Hong
Kong's preparedness and capabilities for handling disasters or
major emergencies. Led by the Academy in collaboration with
The University of Hong Kong (HKU) and The Chinese University
of Hong Kong (CUHK), and supported by international experts,
HKJCDPRI aims at training a cadre of healthcare professionals,
NGO practitioners, teachers and the public over the 5-year project
period with a view not only to promote community resilience in
Hong Kong, but also establish the city as a regional hub for disaster

preparedness and response training through capacity-building and

knowledge development.

Providers and Leadership Courses

The HKJCDPRI develops capacity building programmes for care
providers to enhance their knowledge and skills required for
disaster response. HKJCDPRI's leadership development courses
highlight the importance of critical decision making and effective
communication and coordination skills for emergency operations.
The HKJCDPRI utilises different teaching modalities including
online learning, Virtual Reality (VR) simulation, table-top exercises
and case sharing for blended learning. The followings are new
programmes and some highlights of HKJCDPRI’s Providers and
Leadership Development Courses provided during this year:
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Emergency Incident Management Training with use of XVR
Technology for the Geotechnical Engineering Office (GEO) of the
Civil Engineering and Development Department (CEDD)

Landslide disaster in Hong Kong is rare in recent years. The GEO of
the CEDD has been performing well and is internationally renowned
in slope safety management. Despite this situation, landslide risk
can never be zero. To increase efforts in slope safety work, the
HKJCDPRI joined hands with the GEO of the CEDD to enhance
training efforts for Emergency Duty Officers with roles in emergency
landslide management. On 1-14 March 2019, the first Virtual
Reality (VR) simulation on emergency landslide management
was introduced for training of Emergency Duty Officers of the
GEO. HKICDPRI's VR simulation software, XVR, was used to
create landslide scenarios to enhance learning outcomes. Use of
VR disaster simulation will enhance training immersive realism,

monitoring of performance and feedback evaluation. A total of 35

geotechnical engineers attended the VR simulated trainings (13
sessions) conducted during 1 March 2019 and 14 March 2019.
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VR emergency landslide incidents on the main road VR emergency landslide incidents on the rural village
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Incident Command System Training for
Fire Services Department (FSD)

HKJCDPRI
Mobilising & Communications Group of FSD to design a Virtual

is partnering with the Headquarters Command

Reality (VR) disaster scenario with Fourth Generation Mobilising
and Communications System for training of FSD Station Officers
on incident command system. A total of 40 incident commanders
attended the VR simulated training at the Fire and Ambulance
Services Academy (FASA) on 10 May 2019. XVR simulation
software was used to create fire scenes scenarios to immerse
frontline fire personnel in the virtual operation.
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Participants use the innovative simulation software The VR simulated fire scenario used in the training
in the training S0 0 0 958 3
22 055 (AT A SR

Experiential Learning on Disaster Scene Management for FIA XVR i BEBKRBBEL
HKU Students with use of XVR Technology RIS SRR BE

The HKJCDPRI supported the HKU Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine  #H#fHR ORI EEREEZTZHEE R A
to develop three modules of experiential learning on disaster scene &K BERI A 5 B S S e R (S22 AN
management under their elective course on disaster response =B K HIRIZEEMEHRAERET
for HKU medical students. A new learning function of the XVR SRS KXVRIVFTZ L INEE - ZELT
was used where individual students were allowed to use their own — RUBIBE A FHEREXVR - WIEERHEE K
mobile devices to get access to the XVR and perform their roles in =~ #SRPEERETF LEENAE - R

the simulated disaster scenarios. The course was launched under 21201946 A E & B RKEMoodeF 4t
the HKU Moodle system in June 2019. During the first two months, #EH > BMEARE20928EHE -
a total of 209 students had enrolled in the course.
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Fundamental and Advanced Disaster Response Courses

Since 2016, the HKJCDPRI has been partnering with the Hong
Kong College of Emergency Medicine to conduct the Fundamental
Disaster Response Course and the Advanced Disaster Response
Courses. The fundamental course covered core skills and a
competency checklist for disaster management while the advanced
course aimed to develop the knowledge and skills of administrative
and medical personnel to prepare health care facilities to respond
effectively, to ensure continuous operations during or even after
disasters, and to recover for better from the impacts of disasters.
A total of 72 participants from various related sectors joined the
courses this year.

Participants at the 5"

Fundamental Disaster
Response Course held

during March to June 2019

20 HE R 201943 H
6 H AT R 5K
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Senior Leadership Programme - Training Workshop on Disaster
Management

Since 2016, the HKJCDPRI has been collaborating with the Hong
Kong College of Community Medicine to design and conduct the
Senior Leadership Programme ¢ Training Workshop on Disaster
Management. The Workshop was conducted again this year with a
total of 22 participants joining the course. Renowned leaders and
crisis communications experts were invited to deliver state-of-the-
art topics to the participants.
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Working with Universities in Disaster Education

In the sector of university education, the HKJCDPRI continued
to work with HKU and CUHK to develop and launch disaster
modules on disaster topics under their Master of Public Health
(MPH) programmes. This year, six modules, namely Food Security:
Local and Global Perspectives, Emergency Risk Communication
in Disaster and Humanitarian Crisis, Research Methodology

for Disaster and Medical Humanitarian Response, Disaster

and Humanitarian Crisis, Infectious Outbreaks and Disasters
and Emergency Medicine for Disaster and Humanitarian Crisis
Responders, had been provided for both occasional students and
MPH students. The HKJCDPRI also continued to work with the two
universities in developing e-learning modules. This year, five new

e-learning modules were launched.

Community Engagement

The HKJCDPRI collaborates with different organisations and
schools on “Community Campaign on Disaster Resilience” to deliver
public awareness and education campaigns, tailored to the specific
potential hazards the community is facing. The followings are new
programmes and some highlights of HKJCDPRI's Community
Engagement programmes during this year:

Disaster Education Programmes for Schools

In the year 2018/19, the HKJCDPRI launched two pilot disaster
education programmes for kindergartens and primary schools.
The two pilot programmes aimed to raise the awareness of children
on risks of disasters; to acquire safety habits; to develop suitable
attitudes and behaviors in case of emergencies and to develop
basic skills in response to emergencies. The pilot programme for
kindergartens was a joint effort by the HKJCDPRI and the Child
Education Centre for Teaching and Learning (CECTL), part of the
Department of Childcare, Elderly and Community Services (CECS)
of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (IVE). Teachers
from two partner schools, AEFCHK-EFCC Verbena Nursery School
and Munsang College Kindergarten, received training and technical
support from the CECTL and the HKJCPDRI to design and develop
education tools for achieving the goals of the programme. The

programme for primary schools targeted at primary one to three
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students at 10 partner schools. Interactive dramas were used to
convey key disaster knowledge, risk concepts and proper attitudes

in the face of emergencies around them and the community.

One of Learning Corners
features the theme of
preparing for typhoon

in Munsang College
Kindergarten
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Children learned
about the science of
fire which is one of
the common disaster
hazards in Hong Kong
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Interactive drama programmes on a disaster story were shown at 10 partner schools
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Community Engagement Programmes with NGOs

The HKJCDPRI continues to join hands with partner NGOs to
strengthen the capacities of the community members in disaster
preparedness and response. This year, the HKJCDPRI collaborated
with two NGO partners to launch two new programmes. Partnering
with the Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady Maclehose Centre
(HKSKHLMC), a programme aimed to enhance the response
capacities of people living in subdivided flats in Kwai Tsing district
was carried out. Through a range of educational and environment
improvement activities such as community education booths,
door-to-door visit, fire equipment installation and meetings with
owners’ corporations, disaster preparedness awareness and coping
mechanisms among target subdivided flat residents were enhanced.
Joining efforts with the “Community Development Enhancement
Fund”, the joint programme targeted at low-income households in
Hung Fuk Estate, Yuen Long. The programme covered issues on
environmental safety, household hygiene and fire evacuation.
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An education

booth set up by the
HKSKHLMC in
Kwai Chung
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Public Awareness & Educational Activity

The HKJCDPRI joins efforts with different partners to reach out
to general public for enhancement of disaster awareness and
knowledge.

Multi-media Creation Competition 2018

As an annual signature event, the HKJCDPRI organised the third
Multimedia Creation Competition (MMC) from 1 to 31 October
2018 with the support of Hong Kong Documentary Initiative and
Under the theme
“I Was There”, participants were encouraged to revisit and collect

Hong Kong Press Photographers Association.

fragments of disasters, so as to remind ourselves such upheavals
are so close to our daily lives. Competition winners were announced
on the award presentation ceremony cum community educational
event held on 24 November 2018 at the Lok Fu Plaza.

from showcasing the winning entries, stunning interactive game

Apart

booths were also displayed to promote the importance of disaster
preparedness. The booths were organised by the HKJCDPRI's
close partners, including the Fire Services Department, Civil Aid
Services and HKSKH Lady MaclLehose Centre.

Contest winners receive awards
from the judging panel members,
including representatives from

the Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust, Hong Kong Press
Photographers Association and the

HKJCDPRI
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Collaboration with the Hong Kong Observatory (HKO) on HKO’s
Open Day

The HKJCDPRI participated as one of the exhibitors at the Hong
Kong Observatory’s (HKO) Open Day event on 23-24 March 2019
to promote community resilience by encouraging the public to
prepare disaster survival kits. An education booth was set up and
hosted by the HKJCDPRI encourage the public to prepare disaster

survival kit.

The HKJCDPRI introduces to the
participants essential and special items in
a disaster survival kit
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Collaboration with the Fire Services Department (FSD) on
“Use of Ambulance Service Properly” Roving Exhibition

The HKJCDPRI is the first non-governmental organisation to
join as a collaborating party of the “Use the Ambulance Service
With the
disaster preparedness Virtual Reality (VR) games designed by the

Properly” roving exhibition, organised by the FSD.

HKJCDPRI, participants were able to view simulated scenarios
projected on the 3D goggles and to better understand their roles
and obligations when disaster strikes. This year, four events took
place quarterly in Tin Shiu Wai, Ap Lei Chau, Cheung Sha Wan and
Wan Chai.

Research Studies

The HKJCDPRI and working partners collaborate in conducting

disaster preparedness related research and initiating policy
discussion. Research and policy brief papers have been produced
for multi-sectoral stakeholders to discuss global issues of disaster
risk reduction, local and regional preparedness, community
resilience, and also to develop, implement and evaluate related

policies.
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Public Awareness of Typhoon Preparedness and Views on
Typhoon Preparedness Measures

In order for HKJCDPRI to identify knowledge and service gaps and
to find practical solutions on community disaster preparedness
considering the increase in frequency and intensity of typhoons due
to extreme weather conditions, a survey titled “Public Awareness
of Typhoon Preparedness and Views on Typhoon Preparedness
Measures” was conducted in September 2018. The population-
based survey took super typhoon Manghkut as a case to examine
the public’s actions and information seeking behaviors in response
to the super typhoon. A media conference was held on 6 November

to announce the results of the survey.
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A Study on Trainings Needs and Gaps in Emergency
Management

To understand the wishes and willingness of workers from different
sectors to receive structured emergency planning courses and
to become professional emergency planners, the HKJCDPRI
commissioned the Public Opinion Programme (POP) of The
University of Hong Kong to collect citizens’ views on the training
needs in Emergency Management and Disaster Preparedness.
Survey findings indicated that the responders showed interests
in receiving structured emergency planner training with formal
qualification. The next step would be planning for in-depth interviews
with key opinion leaders in the field, to assess the current situation
and make recommendations for Hong Kong in the need of setting

up a certification and qualification system for emergency planners.
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Ms. Eva Lam, Director of

the HKJCDPRI, presents

the survey findings and

gave suggestions on disaster
preparedness
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Annual Conference on Disaster Preparedness and

Response 2019

The HKJCDPRI held its signature event, the Annual Conference
on Disaster Preparedness and Response, on 29 June 2019. The
Conference with the theme “Reduce Risks. Build Resilience” was
the fourth in this series of conferences. The event brought together
experts and practitioners, government officials, the scientific and
academic institutions, the NGO sector and the private sector to share
experience and discuss the strategies of disaster preparedness
and resilience building in face of emerging challenges and
complexities. A wide range of topics such as climate change, crisis
communications, disaster risk financing, disaster research and
mass casualty management were covered. Apart from the main
scientific conference on 29 June, the pre-conference workshop
titled “Use of Big Data and Social Media in Time of Crisis” and the
post-conference visit to the Hong Kong Observatory Headquarters
were organised on 28 June and 30 June respectively. The event

attracted over 300 participants.

Participants take a group photo

at the conference
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Roundtable discussion with panelists from

the Civil Engineering and Development
Department, the Hong Kong Fire Services
Department, Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, the Hong Kong Red Cross, the
Peak Re Company and the 100 Resilience
Cities of the Rockefeller Foundation
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Hong Kong Jockey Club Innovative Learning Centre for Medicine
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for Medicine

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Innovative Learning Centre for Medicine
(HKJC ILCM) was inaugurated in December 2013 to promote
innovative learning and research among healthcare professionals
to deliver safe and quality patient care. One of the major roles of
HKJC ILCM is faculty development for medical simulation as a

learning tool.

Over the 12 months between September 2018 and August 2019,
the HKJC ILCM organised and hosted more than 86 training
programmes and activities as well as professional exchange events,
some in collaboration with various partners such as Colleges of
the Academy, local universities, Hospital Authority and Hong
Kong Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and Response Institute,
mainland and overseas counterparts. Our events targeted at
Fellows, trainees, nurses, medical students, allied healthcare and
paramedical professionals.

Faculty Development Training Programmes
Comprehensive Simulation Educator Course

The HKJC ILCM’s Comprehensive Simulation Educator Course
(CSEC) is the key faculty development programme and was
conducted in November 2018 as well as March and July 2019.
Designed for healthcare specialists with an interest in using medical
simulation as a teaching tool, CSEC provided participants with an
understanding of the basic concepts of learner-centred education
and essential learners’

knowledge to develop competence

in planning simulation-based learning activities, scenario
development, direction, execution and debriefing methods. CSEC
was developed and conducted by local faculty in collaboration with
Center for Medical Simulation (CMS) of the Harvard University in
Boston. Favourable reviews and feedbacks were received from
CMS and the learners. The HKJC ILCM shall continue to run CSEC

on a regular basis.
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HKJC ILCM conducts the Comprehensive Simulation Educator Course
RRLE B | O B AR A BB 2 7 A R AR

Debriefing Skills for Simulation Instructors Course

The Debriefing Skills for Simulation Instructors Course (DSSI) aims
to provide the essential knowledge and skills to develop learners’
competence in debriefing methods commonly used in simulation
training courses. This 2-day course is designed and suitable for
healthcare professionals who wish to learn more about simulation-
based learning and to apply the techniques of debriefing and

feedback as a tool in teaching adult learners.

DSSI course is one of HKJC ILCM’s signature courses

RS B8 ) 0 T 9 30 1 R R AR 3 )1 PO ) B R AR 2 —

Advanced Simulation Training in Mechanical Ventilation
(ASTiM2)

The HKJC ILCM has developed a one-day ASTIM course, in
collaboration with Hong Kong Society of Critical Care Medicine
(HKSCCM) and Hong Kong College of Critical Care Nursing
(HKCCCN), aiming atenhancing knowledge and skills in mechanical
ventilation through interactive learning activities and hands on
simulation training workshops with advanced respiratory ventilator.
The primary target participants are healthcare professionals taking
care of patients requiring mechanical ventilation.
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Medical Moulage and Mock-up Workshop

Realism is considered as one of the elements to better engage
participants in simulation training activities, so sophisticated
medical moulage and mock up skills play an important part in
achieving the goal. In this connection, HKJC ILCM organised a half-
day workshop in August 2019 aiming to introduce participants to
acquire knowledge of materials and equipment for moulage and
learn skills in making skin of different conditions such as bruises,

wounds, bleeding etc. in training scenarios.
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The Medical Moulage and Mock-up Workshop aims at enhancing fidelity in simulated scenario
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Adult Extracorporeal Membrane Oxygenation (ECMO) Training
Course

The internationally recognised ECMO course, jointly organised
with 6 other
namely Extracorporeal Life Support Organization, Asia-Pacific

medical bodies and healthcare institutions,
Extracorporeal Life Support Organization, Queen Mary Hospital and
Grantham Hospital, was held at HKJC ILCM. It was well attended by
medical professionals from Asia-Pacific region. The 4-day course

will be hosted at HKJC ILCM annually.

Electroconvulsive Therapy (ECT) Training Workshop

Todeliver ECT training effectively with simulation components, HKJC
ILCM has supported the development of ECT training workshop by
the Hong Kong College of Psychiatrists. The half-day workshop co-
organised with the HKJC ILCM enables participants to acquire and
apply knowledge and skills of conducting ECT through simulated
scenarios. The workshop will be run a few times annually.
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Procedural Sedation Safety Course (PSSC)

HKJC ILCM
Anaesthesiologists (HKCA) to develop the PSSC to facilitate medical

is collaborating with  Hong Kong College of

professionals to meet the requirement for the Academy’s Guidelines
on Procedural Sedation published on 1 April 2019. The first course
is scheduled for 20 October 2019.

Air Crew Resuscitation Simulation (ACRS) Course

HKJC ILCM has submitted a tender proposal to the Government
Flying Service for provision of a 18-month clinical simulation
training in patient care to its aircrew. The course is co-organised
with HKCA and the first course is tentatively planned to be run in
the fourth quarter of 2019.

Training Activities in Conferences

HKJC ILCM conducted a workshop in the Academy’s 5" Medical
Education Conference in May 2019 introducing knowledge and
skills of debriefing in challenging situations.

HKAM-CMS Visiting Scholar Programme

CMS Visiting Scholar Programme is a collaborative project between
the Academy and CMS to promote expertise in patient safety,
and education and research in medical simulation in Hong Kong
and China. Fellows and other healthcare professionals who have
graduated from the Institute for Medical Simulation (IMS) instructor
courses or CSEC are eligible to apply for this programme. Successful
candidates are offered a scholarship to attend the 2-month
programme in Boston. The Programme remains well subscribed
with the support from various partners since the launch. The HKJC

ILCM will continue to invite applicants for this scholarship.

Simulation Alliance Scientific Meeting

Hong Kong Simulation Alliance is a group with a collective aim to
promote the use of simulation as a tool for learning and assessment
amongst healthcare professionals and students with an ultimate
objective to improve patient care and safety. It consists of the
Academy, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Department of
Health of the HKSAR Government, Hong Kong Society for Simulation
in Healthcare, The Hong Kong Private Hospitals Association, The
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University of Hong Kong and Hospital Authority. The Meeting aims
to provide a platform for members of Hong Kong Simulation Alliance

to share their views and experience in using simulation.

The HKJC ILCM Initiatives

The HKJC ILCM has launched a service to loan some of the
training equipment as well as human patient simulators and other
training simulators to the Colleges of the Academy for training
and examination conducted within the Academy building. Other
initiatives including a library of reference materials and books on
medical simulation and medical education are also made available

to all Fellows.

Internship Programme

The Internship Programme is an initiative in collaboration with
the Department of Biomedical Engineering of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University as well as Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine
of The University of Hong Kong. The internship programme aims
to provide students with an exposure to the scope and experience
in the application of innovative technology in multidisciplinary
healthcare education and to understand more on medical

simulation education.

The First Hong Kong-Shenzhen Simulation
Education Conference

The HKJC ILCM co-organised The First Hong Kong-Shenzhen
Simulation Education Conference with The University of Hong Kong-
Shenzhen Hospital and Guangdong Medical Doctor Association
held in Shenzhen on 8-9 July 2019. Dr. C.C. Lau, Vice-President
(General Affairs) of the Academy, officiated the opening ceremony
and delivered a welcome speech. Being one of the co-organisers,
HKJC ILCM invited Dr. Kate Morse of the CMS to share experience
at the Conference. Besides giving presentations on simulation
and faculty development, Honorary Director and representatives
of HKJC ILCM hosted a one-day workshop covering knowledge
and techniques required for simulation education and debriefing.
The Conference was a milestone to signify further collaboration
in simulation training between Hong Kong and the Mainland

counterparts.
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Representatives of HKJC ILCM deliver presentations and host a workshop during the Conference
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HKJC ILCM Simulation Trainers Certification
Programme

The HKJC ILCM’s mission is to ensure the quality of innovative
simulation learning and research enabling healthcare professionals
to deliver safe and quality patient care. Therefore, a Simulation
Trainers Certification Programme has been initiated, developed and
preliminarily implemented by and within HKJC ILCM in 2019. Itis a
recognition for qualified simulation trainers in healthcare under and
for courses of HKJC ILCM.

The Programme is a continuous quality improvement programme
with objectives to recognise and enhance the simulation trainer’s
specialised knowledge, skills and excellence in practice. It also
provides a platform in HKJC ILCM for peer review and censorship
for personnel practicing simulation-based education. The ultimate
goal is to ensure quality assurance of the provision of healthcare
simulation-based training.

At this beginning stage, the Simulation Trainers Certification
Programme will only accept trainers who have taught HKJC ILCM
courses; however, it may be extended to other trainers to join on a

voluntary basis in the long run.
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Honorary Treasurer’s Report
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A consolidated deficit of around HK$20M was recorded for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The key factors leading to the deficit
included the increased depreciation expenses incurred from the
number of renovation works taken place in the recent few years
including the previous major one for the Run Run Shaw Hall, Pao
Yue Kong Auditorium and Lim Por Yen Lecture Theatre two years
ago. The Council and its Finance and Investment Committee would
continue to review and impose appropriate measures to ensure the
financial sustainability for the Academy.

At the time of writing the report, the Academy and Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine Foundation Fund held a total of cash or its
equivalents around HK$89M.

On behalf of the Academy, | would like to thank the members of
the Finance and Investment Committee for their time and effort
in helping the Academy keep a healthy and sustainable position
in its finance. During the year, Dr. Philip Wu stepped down as the
committee chairman and the chairmanship was taken up by Mrs.
Vivian Chan. We would like to express our gratitude to Dr. Wu for
his contributions to the Academy for more than 18 years and look
forward to having the new Chairman’s guidance on the Academy'’s
finance.

Dr. Y.F. Chow

Honorary Treasurer
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BEEEE (&%) SHMESBHERAT
Crowe Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
‘ 5 RIS 1BIRE77R BER09E
9/F Leighton Centre,
77 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

EEE Main +852 2894 6888
{85 Fax +852 2895 3752
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF www.crowe.hk
HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

BB SRER T
(Established in Hong Kong)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (“the Academy”) and its
structured entity, The Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Foundation Fund (collectively “the Group”) set out
on pages 4 to 43, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
the consolidated statement of income and expenditure, the consolidated statement of income and
expenditure and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in reserve and
funds and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The council members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowiedge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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. Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF
HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

BB 2R

(Established in Hong Kong)

(Continued)

Responsibilities of the council members for the consolidated financial statements

The council members are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and section 14 of Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine Ordinance, and for such internal control as the council members determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the council members are responsible for assessing the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the council members either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements -

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 14 of the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the council members.

HKAM Annual Report 2019



N Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF
HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

EHAR R 2N

(Established in Hong Kong)

(Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

® Conclude on the appropriateness of the council members’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the council members regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Cvowe, CHK) CP()\ ]_im"ercl

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 20 June 2019

Poon Cheuk Ngai
Practising Certificate Number P06711

HCH1010-2018
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

FRREENE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Note 2018 2017

HK$ HK$

Principal source of revenue 4 26,196,375 25,449,025
Other revenue and other net gain/(loss) 5 43,934,778 40,488,789
Depreciation 8 (24,727,471) (21,415,554)
Staff costs 6 (23,652,967) (22,238,641)
Other operating expenses (42,269,920) (40,003,772)
Deficit for the year 6 (20,519,205) (17,720,153)

The notes on pages 9 to 43 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

EAEREENER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2018 2017
HK$ HK$
Deficit for the year (20,519,205) (17,720,153)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of nil
income tax
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
income and expenditure
Change in fair value of investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (7,311,502) -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
income and expenditure
Available-for-sale investments in equity instruments
- changes in fair value = 11,059,337
- reclassification adjustment on disposal - 316,032
- 11,375,369
Total comprehensive loss for the year (27,830,707) (6,344,784)

The notes on pages 9 to 43 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FHEREENEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8
Investments in equity instruments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive
income 10
Available-for-sale investments

Current assets
Inventories - general merchandise

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables 11
Time deposits 12
Cash and cash equivalents 12

Current liabilities
Receipts in advance
Accruals and other payables 13

Net current assets
Net assets

Reserve and funds 14
Fair value reserve
Foundation fund
General fund

2018 2017
HK$ HK$
48,344,157 71,480,710
49,658,003 =
- 57,598,378
98,002,160 129,079,088
197,652 216,278
10,267,957 9,730,546
13,656,806 :
14,043,767 22,866,279
38,166,182 32,813,103
25,560 10,830
8,770,821 - 6,678,693
(8,796,381) (6,689,523)
29,369,801 26,123,580
127,371,961 155,202,668
3,449,565 11,444,933
37,936,231 37,936,231
85,986,165 105,821,504
127,371,961 155,202,668

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 20 June 2019.

On behalf of the Council

Prof. Lau Chak-sing
President

The notes on pages 9 to 43 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

AR BER S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVE AND FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

At 1 January 2017
Deficit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale securities:
Changes in fair value
Reclassification adjustment for
disposal

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

At 31 December 2017

Impact on initial application of
HKFRS9

Adjusted balance at
1 January 2018

Deficit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value
through other comprehensive
income:
Change in fair value

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Transfer to general fund

At 31 December 2018

Fair value Foundation General
reserve fund fund Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
69,564 37,936,231 123,541,657 161,547,452
- - (17,720,153)  (17,720,153)
11,059,337 . - 11,059,337
316,032 - : 316,032
11,375,369 - (17,720,153) (6,344,784)
11,444,933 37,936,231 105,821,504 155,202,668
(157,009) - 157,009 -
11,287,924 37,936,231 105,978,513 155,202,668
- - (20,519,205)  (20,519,205)
(7,311,502) . - (7,311,502)
_(7,311,502) - _ (20,519,205) (27,830,707)
(526,857) - 526,857 -
3,449,565 37,936,231 85,986,165 127,371,961

The notes on pages 9 to 43 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
EFHRBEENEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Note 2018 2017
HK$ HK$
Operating activities
Deficit for the year (20,519,205) (17,720,153)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 24,727,471 21,415,554
Interest income (225,828) (106,333)
Dividend income from other financial assets (2,172,381) (8,971,300)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment - 865,487
(Gain)/loss on disposal of available-for-sale
investments - (619,088)
Operating profit/(loss) before changes in
working capital 1,810,057 (135,833)
Decrease in inventories 18,627 28,902
Increase in debtors, prepayment, deposits and
other receivables (537,411) (2,979,337)
Increase/(decrease) in receipts in advance 14,730 (1,812)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and other
payables 2,092,128 (4,789,738)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating
activities 3,398,131 (7,877,818)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,590,918) (35,622,572)
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets 1,567,590 11,761,207
Placement of time deposits (13,656,806) -
Interest received 225,828 106,333
Dividend received from other financial assets 1,233,663 2,038,398
Net cash used in investing activities (12,220,643) (21,716,634)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (8,822,512) (29,594,452)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 22,866,279 52,460,731
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 14,043,767 22,866,279

The notes on pages 9 to 43 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FRRBEEN B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

1. STATUS OF THE ACADEMY

The Academy was established as a body corporate under the Hong Kong Academy of
Medicine Ordinance on 1 August 1992. The principal activities of the Academy are to promote
and advance the science of medicine by education and exchange of information as well as to
improve the standard of local health care. The Academy has its registered office and principal
place of business at 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Academy and its structured entity (together referred to as the Group”) is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 3
provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 comprise
the Academy and The Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Foundation Fund which is a
structured entity of the Academy.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- financial instruments classified as investments in equity instruments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income/available-for-sale investments
(see note 2(h));

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FHRREEN B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 18.

c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Academy and structured entity controlled by the Academy. Control is achieved when
the Academy:

< has power over the investee;
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee;
and

« has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has
power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

«  the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

¢ potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or other parties;

«  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

+ any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that

decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous members’
meetings.

Consolidation of a structured entity begins when the Group obtains control over the
structured entity and ceases when the Group loses control of the structured entity.
Specifically, income and expenses of a structured entity acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the structured
entity.

10
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
THAREEN B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c)

d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of structured entity
to bring its accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(g)).

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment
using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings classified as held under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the buildings or the unexpired term of the land lease
using the straight line method.

Leasehold land and building 25 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Furnitures and fixtures 5 years
Training & office equipment 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the income and expenditure account
on the date of retirement or disposal.

11
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FHAREERER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress include property, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Academy’s accounting policy.
Such properties, plant and equipment are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a
lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

iy  Classification of assets leased to the group

Assets that are held by group under leases which transfer to the group
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property is classified as investment property on a
property-by-property basis and, if classified as investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

i)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

12
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FRBBHENE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

f)

g)

Leased assets (Continued)

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Academy recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)
on the financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, other receivables and amounts due from group entities.
Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Academy in accordance with

the contract and the cash flows that the Academy expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets: effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate;

13
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

EAREENER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKAM Annual Report 2019

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Academy is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Academy takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the expected lives of the items to which the
ECL model applies.

The Academy applies a simplified approach to measure ECL on cash and
cash equivalents, other receivables and amounts due from group entities.
Under the simplified approach, the Academy measures the loss based on
lifetime ECL.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Academy compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Academy considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Academy in full,
without recourse by the Academy to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Academy
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

14



HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

THAREENSERE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

9)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(@

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually
due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Academy.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual basis or
a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the
financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Academy recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2(n) is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Academy assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

EABRBHENER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

(A)

B)

HKAM Annual Report 2019

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or
in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Academy determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss” model was used to measure
impairment losses on financial assets not classified as at FVPL (e.g. other
receivables and amounts due from group entities). Under the “incurred loss”
model, an impairment loss was recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment included:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
EAREHENER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

9)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

@i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; and

significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was determined and
recognised as follows:

For other receivables and amounts due from group entities carried at
amortised cost, impairment loss was measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate, where the effect of discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively where these financial assets shared
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and had not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which were assessed for impairment collectively were based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreased
and the decrease could be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss was reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss was only
recognised to the extent that it did not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

TAREENENR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was determined and
recognised as follows: (Continued)

When the recovery of financial assets carried at amortised cost was
considered doubtful but not remote, associated impairment losses were
recorded using an allowance account. When the Academy was satisfied
that recovery was remote, the amount considered irrecoverable was
written off against the gross carrying amount of those assets directly.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account were reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly were recognised in profit or loss.

(i} impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to identify indications that plant and equipment may be impaired
or, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated:

HKAM Annual Report 2019

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
AR EERN S

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated:
(Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Other financial assets

a)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Academy are classified as fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) when the contractual cash flows of the investment do not
represent solely payments of principal and interest. Changes in the fair value of
the investment (including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

If the contractual cash flows of the non-equity investments held by the Academy
represent solely payments of principal and interest, the investment would be
classified as amortised cost, as the Academy does not invest in such instruments
other than principally to collect those contractual cash flows. Interest income from
investments carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 2(n)). A loss allowance on investments carried at amortised cost
would be recognised with reference to credit losses expected to arise on the
instrument, discounted where the effect would be material, and taking into account
whether the credit risk of the instrument had increased significantly since initial
recognition.

19

T B R BE 20194F LA

87



88

HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
HHARBENEM5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h)

Other financial assets (Continued)

a)

b)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Investments other than equity investments (Continued)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Academy makes an irrevocable election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or loss.

Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(n).

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
Available-for-sale securities

Other investments in securities, being those held for non-trading purposes, were
classified as available-for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve (recycling).

Dividend income from equity securities and interest income from debt securities
calculated using the effective interest method were recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out in notes 2(n) respectively. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost of debt securities
were also recognised in profit or loss.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FARBEENER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h)

)

k)

Other financial assets (Continued)
b) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

When there was objective evidence that available-for-sale securities were
impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised in the fair value reserve
(recycling) was reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that was recognised in profit or loss was the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss. Objective
evidence of impairment included observable data that came to the attention of the
Academy concerning the underlying financial stability of the investee as well as a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities were not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets was recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities were reversed if
the subsequent increase in fair value can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses in such circumstances were recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments were derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2(g)(i)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are

readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at a acquisition.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
THAREEN SR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1) Funds managed by the Group
i)  Foundation fund

Funds received which is used exclusively for the establishment and use of the
Academy at such time as the Academy shall direct are accounted for as
Foundation fund.

ii)  General fund

The fund balance represents the accumulated surplus of the Foundation after
deducting the amounts transferred to the Academy and is used to finance the
general operations of the Group.

m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

n)  Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the
income and expenditure account as follows:
i) Provision of services

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when the services are rendered.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
ERBEHNSER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n)

o)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

i)

iif)

v)

vi)

Entrance fees and subscription fees

Entrance fees are recognised at a point in time, i.e. when the cash is received.
Subscription fees are recognised on an accrual basis and recognised over time.

Donations, grants and contributions

Donations, grants and contributions are recognised when the Group is reasonably
assured that such amount will be received.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in the income and expenditure account on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.

Income from international congress and various functions

Income from international congress and various functions is recognised on an
accrual basis.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.
Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established.

Related parties

a)

b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Academy if
that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Academy;
ii)  has significant influence over the Academy; or

iy is a member of the key management personnel of the Academy or the
Academy’s parent.

An entity is related to the Academy if any of the following conditions applies:
i)  The entity and the Academy are members of the same Academy (which

means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

o) Related parties (Continued)

b)

An entity is related to the Academy if any of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the company or an entity related to the Academy.

vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

p) Employee benefits

i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values. .
Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are charged to the income and
expenditure account.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FRREEN S5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
p) Employee benefits (Continued)
ii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group
demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

q) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except
those arising from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a
foreign operation which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.

The functional and presentation currency of the Academy is Hong Kong dollars.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Academy. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Academy’s financial statements:

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

The Academy has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for

the current accounting period, except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation which have been adopted at the same time as HKFRS 9.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FHARBHN S

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Academy has not been impacted by HKFRS 9 in relation to classification of financial
assets and measurement of credit losses. Details of the changes in accounting policies are
discussed in subsection (a) of this note for HKFRS 9.

a) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition and measurement. It
sets out the requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

The Academy has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items that existed at 1 January
2018 in accordance with the transition requirements. The Academy has recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the opening equity at 1
January 2018. Therefore, comparative information continues to be reported under
HKAS 39.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies
and the transition approach are set out below:

i)  Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) and at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”). These supersede
HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets measured at FVPL. The
classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the business model
under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

Under HKFRS 9, the classification for all the Academy’s financial assets and
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost remain the same. The carrying
amounts for all financial assets and financial liabilities at 1 January 2018 have not
been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

The table set out in note 3(a)(iii) shows the original measurement categories for
each class of the group’s financial assets under HKAS 39 and reconciles the
carrying amounts of those financial assets determined in accordance with HKAS
39 to those determined in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Under HKAS 39, equity securities not held for trading were classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. These equity securities are classified as at
FVPL under HKFRS 9, unless they are eligible for and designated at FVOCI by

the group. At 1 January 2018, the group designated its investment in equity
instruments at FVOCI.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE

FHAREHENSE5R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation (Continued)

i)

i)

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model. The ECL model requires an ongoing measurement of credit
risk associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs earlier than
under the “incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Academy applies the new ECL model to the following items:

financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, other receivables and amounts due from group entities)

For further details on the Academy’s accounting policy for accounting for
credit losses, see note 2(e)(i).

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been
applied retrospectively, except as described below:

Information relating to comparative periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in accumulated losses and reserves
as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2017
continues to be reported under HKAS 39 and thus may not be comparable
with the current period.

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9 by the Academy).

The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is
held.

If, at the date of initial application, the assessment of whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition would have
involved undue cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has been recognised for that
financial instrument.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FHRREEN B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation (Continued)

iii)  Transition (Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9
The table below illustrates the classification and measurement of financial assets

and other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018.

Investments
in equity
instruments
designated at
Available-for-sale fair value
(“AFS”) through other
investments in comprehensive
equity income Fair value General
Note securities (‘EVTOCI") reserve fund
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Closing balance
at 31
December
2017 - HKAS 39 57,598,378 - 11,444,933 105,821,504
Effect arising
from initial
application of
HKFRS 9:

Reclassification
From AFS (57,598,378) 57,598,378 (157,009) 157,009

Opening balance
at 1 January

2018 - 57,598,378 11,287,924 105,978,513

* The movement

during the
year:
Adjusted balance

at

1 January 2018 - 57,598,378 11,287,924
Other

comprehensive

income during

the year - (7,311,502) (7,311,502)
Addition equity

investment

during the year - 938,717 -
Disposal of

equity

investment

during the year - (1,541,920) -
Transfer to

general fund - (25,670) (526,857)

At 31 December
2018 - 49,658,003 3,449,565
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
EHABREERSN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment

features with negative compensation (Continued)

iii)  Transition (Continued)

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies above, the opening
consolidated statement of financial position had to be restated. The following table
show the adjustments recognised for each of the line items affected. Line items

that were not affected by the changes have not been included.

31 December 2017 HKFRS 9 1 January 2018
HK$ HK$ HK$
Non-current assets
Investments in equity
instruments
designated at
FVTOCI - 57,598,378 57,598,378
AFS investments in
equity securities 57,598,378 (57,598,378) -
Capital and reserves
Fair value reserve (11,444,933) 157,009 (11,287,924)
General fund (105,821,504) (157,009) (105,978,513)

b) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

The council member of the Academy are of the opinion that the adoption of HKFRS 15
does not have any material impact on the financial position and the financial results of

the Academy.

c) HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining “the date of the transaction” for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising from a transaction in which an entity

receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction” is the date on initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset or liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of
recognising the related item, the date of the transaction for each payment or receipt
should be determined in this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 does not have any

material impact on the financial position and the financial result of the Academy.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FRREEN B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

4. PRINCIPAL SOURCE OF REVENUE

This represents the entrance fees and subscription fees received from fellows and members,
and is analysed as follows:

2018 2017
HK$ HK$
Entrance fees 5,210,000 4,900,000
Subscription fees 20,986,375 20,549,025
26,196,375 25,449,025
5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN/(LOSS)
2018 2017
HK$ HK$
Other revenue
Advertising fee 263,843 245,048
Income from specialist certification 309,900 339,300
Income from various functions 18,137,658 - 10,381,555
Bank interest income * 225,828 106,333
Rental income 3,601,676 3,602,176
Subscriptions - journal 1,794,538 2,452,983
Training registration fee 1,955,910 1,281,300
Donation income from
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 19,012,716 16,673,461
Others 1,454,335 1,004,045
41,756,404 36,086,201
Other net gain/(loss)
Dividend income from other financial assets 2,172,381 3,971,300
Exchange gain/(loss) 5,993 (187,800)
Net gain on disposal of other financial assets - 619,088
2,178,374 4,402,588
43,934,778 40,488,789

*

The bank interest income was not generated from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
FRREENER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

6. DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR

Deficit for the year is arrived at after charging:

2018 2017
HK$ HK$
a) Staff costs

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 1,325,606 1,275,329
Salaries, wages and other benefits 22,327,361 20,963,312
23,652,967 22,238,641

b) Other items
Auditor’'s remuneration 169,500 163,600
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 865,487
Depreciation 24,727,471 21,415,554
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss (5,993) 187,800

7. TAXATION

No provision has been made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group is exempted from
taxation under the provision of section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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HONG KONG ACADEMY OF MEDICINE
EHREEN S5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture Training & Leasehold Construction
Computer and office Leasehold land and in
equipment fixtures equipment improvements buildings Total progress Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Cost
At 1 January 2017 4,285,939 16,064,594 36,103,369 51,484,970 3,335,832 111,274,704 - 111,274,704
Additions 547,504 365,408 203,840 1,147,850 - 2,264,602 34,492,775 36,757,377
Disposals (773,185) (812,336) (2,379,120) (5,430,490) - (9,395,131) - (9,395,131)
Transfers - - - 34,492,775 = 34,492,775 (34,492,775) -
At 31 December 2017
and 1 January 2018 4,060,258 15,617,666 33,928,089 81,695,105 3,335,832 138,636,950 - 138,636,950
Additions 237,718 93,460 17,870 1,241,870 - 1,590,918 - 1,590,918
Disposals - - - - - - -
Transfers
At 31 December 2018 4,297,976 15,711,126 33,945,959 82,936,975 3,335,832 140,227,868 - 140,227,868
Accumulated depreciation
A1 January 2017 2028377 6572733 21712840 22488616 1,467,764 54,270,330 - 54270330
Charge for the year 748,145 2,908,025 5,664,899 11,961,052 133,433 21,415,554 - 21,415,554
Write back on disposals (773,185) (812,336) (2,379,120) (4,565,003) - 8,529,644 - 8,529,644
At 31 December 2017
and 1 January 2018 2,008,337 8,668,422 24,998,619 29,884,665 1,601,197 67,156,240 - 67,156,240
Charge for the year 788,619 2,933,060 5,184,197 15,688,160 133,435 24,727,471 - 24,727,471
Write back on disposals - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2018 2,791,956 11,601,482 30,182,816 45,572,825 1,734,632 91,883,711 - 91,883,711
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2018 1,506,020 4,109,644 3,763,143 37,364,150 1,601,200 48,344,157 - 48,344,157
At 31 December 2017 2,056,921 6,949,244 8,929,470 51,810,440 1,734,635 71,480,710 - 71,480,710

The Academy entered into an agreement with the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government for grant by Private Treaty of Aberdeen Inland Lot No. 414 for a term of 50 years
less 3 days with effect from 1 July 1997 and on which the headquarters of the Academy were
built. The Academy is required to pay an amount equal to 3% of the rateable value per annum,
which has been charged to the income and expenditure account.

9. INTEREST IN A SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITY
Details of the special purpose entity are as follows:

Proportion of

Place of ownership
Form of incorporation interest
Name of the special business and Principal held by
purpose entity structure operation activity Academy
The Hong Kong Incorporated Hong Kong  Fund raising and 100%
Academy of Medicine investment
Foundation Fund management
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THRRBEN B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

10. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
HK$ HK$ HK$
Investments designated at FVOCI:
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 49,658,003 57,598,378 -
Available-for-sale investments:
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong - - 57,598,378

11. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2018 2017

HK$ HK$

Bank interest receivables 46,611 10,442

Deposits 134,153 106,603

Deposit paid to building management company 900,000 900,000

Function fee receivable 799,637 1,688,215

Prepaid expenses 1,698,414 1,796,665
Receivable from associations, government authorities

and independent third parties arising from
academic functions 6,689,142 5,228,621
10,267,957 9,730,546

Except for deposits of HK$1,034,153 (2017: HK$1,006,603), all of the prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 17(a).

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are the following amounts denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

2018 2017

United States Dollars - 41,298
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

12. TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2017
HK$ HK$

Time deposits with original maturity of
three months or less - 13,467,536
Cash at bank and on hand 14,043,767 9,398,743
14,043,767 22,866,279

Time deposits with original maturity

- Over three months 13,656,806 -

Included in cash and cash equivalents are the following amounts denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

2018 2017
United States Dollars 471,274 462,646
Renminbi 242,536 199,592
13. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

2018 2017
HK$ HK$

Accrued expenses payable to building management
company (1,362,143) (1,186,523)
Other accrued expenses (7,099,167) (3,950,723)
Payable for acquisition of leasehold improvement - (1,134,805)
Salary payables (309,511) (406,642)
(8,770,821) (6,678,693)

All accruals and other payables are expected to be settled within one year or are repayable
on demand.

14. RESERVE AND FUNDS
a) Movements in components of reserve and funds
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated reserve and funds is set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in reserve and funds. Details of the changes in the Academy’s individual

components of reserve and funds between the beginning and the end of the year are
set out below:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

14. RESERVE AND FUNDS (Continued)

a) Movements in components of reserve and funds (Continued)

The Academy
Fair value General
__reserve —fund Total
HK$ HK$ HK$
At 1 January 2017 69,564 130,824,838 130,894,402
Deficit for the year - (17,839,946) (17,839,946)
Other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale securities: ;
Changes in fair value 11,059,337 - 11,059,337
Reclassification adjustment - -
on disposal 316,032 . - . 316,032
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year 11,375,369 (17,839,946) (6,464,577)
Transfer from Hong Kong Academy
of Medicine Foundation Fund - 16,500,000 16,500,000
At 31 December 2017 11,444,933 129,484,892 140,929,825
Impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9 (157,009) 157,009 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 11,287,924 129,641,901 140,929,825
Deficit for the year - (20,724,651) (20,724,651)
Other comprehensive income
Investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income: : - |
Changes in fair value (7,311,502) - (7,311,502)
Reclassification adjustment on ' -
disposal - - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year (7,311,502) (20,724,651) (28,036,153)
Transfer to general fund (526,857) 526,857 -
At 31 December 2018 3,449,565 109,444,107 112,893,672

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of
available-for-sale securities held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy in note 2(h). Funds received are accounted for in
the Foundation fund which is used exclusively for the establishment and use of the
Academy at such time as the Academy shall direct. General fund represents the
cumulative surplus of the Academy.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

15.

16.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group defined all components of reserve and funds as “capital’. On this basis, the
amount of capital employed at 31 December 2018 was HK$127,371,961 (2017:
HK$155,202,668).

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed. Adjustments are made to
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Group, to the
extent that these do not conflict with the Council’s fiduciary duties towards the Group or the
requirements of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Ordinance.

The Group was not subject to externally imposed capital requirements in either the current or
prior year.

COMMITMENTS

Lease commitment

The Academy as lessor

The Academy’s total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are receivable as follows:

2018 2017

HK$ HK$

Within 1 year 391,500 378,000
After 1 year but within 5 years 216,000 67,500
607,500 445,500

The Academy leases out certain areas of its headquarter under operating leases. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s major financial instruments include investments in equity instruments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income/available-for-sale investments, receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and payables. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risk associated with these financial instruments include credit risk,
liquidity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to receivables, other financial assets and
cash deposits. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

i) In respect of the receivables, in order to minimize risk, the management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its debtor’s financial position and condition is
performed on each and every major debtor periodically. These evaluations focus
on the debtor’s past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the debtor. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of its financial assets. After the adoption of HKFRS 9,
the Group also takes into account the economic environment in which the debtor
operates.

i)  The investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income/available-for-sale investments are liquid securities listed
on the recognised stock exchanges. Given their high credit standing, management
does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

iii)  The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit - rating agencies.

iv)  The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and/or from other groups to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following liquidity tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on

contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the Group can be required to
pay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Contractual undiscounted

cash outflow
Total Carrying
Within contractual amount
1 year or undiscounted at 31
on demand cash flow December
HK$ HK$ HK$
For the year ended 31 December
2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Accruals and other payables 8,770,821 8,770,821 8,770,821
For the year ended 31 December
2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities _
Accruals and other payables 6,678,693 6,678,693 6,678,693

c) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it earns bank interest
on cash and deposits.

The effective interest rates per annum relating to cash at bank and time deposits at the
end of the reporting period ranges from 0.01% to 2.35% (2017: 0.01% to 1.63%) for the
Group.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s deficit for the year and increase/decrease the Group’s general fund by
approximately HK$277,000 (2017: HK$229,000). Other components of equity would
not be affected (2017: HK$Nil) by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase represents management’'s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until the end of next reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017.
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17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
d)  Currency risk

The Group’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars. The Group is exposed to
currency risk through cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
United States dollars (“USD”). As the Hong Kong dollar (“‘HKD”) is pegged to the USD,
the Group does not expect any significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange rate.
At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general increase or decrease in 5% of
exchange rates, with all variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
deficit for the year and increase/decrease the Group’s general fund by approximately
HK$14,000 (2017: HK$10,000).

e) Fair values measurement
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows: '

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

17.

18.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

e) Fair values measurement (Continued)

Fair value as at

31 December
2018
HK$

Financial assets

AFS investments

in equity

securities -
Listed equity

securities

Investments in
equity
instruments
designated at
FVTOCI

Listed equity

securities 49,658,003

31 December
2017
HK$

57,598,378

Fair value
hierarchy

Level 1

Level 1

Valuation Significant
techniques and unobservable
key inputs inputs
Quoted bid prices
in an active market N/A
Quoted bid prices
in an active market N/A

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, all financial instruments measured at fair value fall into
level 1 of the fair value hierarchy described above.

f) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from listed equity investments.
The Group’s listed investments are listed on recognised stock exchange. Listed
investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored regularly for performance against

expectations.

The Council monitors the market price risk of the investments individually and
estimated that a 5% increase/decrease in market prices of equity securities at 31
December 2018, with all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s deficit for the year (and increase/decrease the Group’s general fund) and
increase/decrease the Group’s other components of reserve by HK$nil and HK$2.5
million respectively (2017: HK$nil and HK$2.9 million respectively).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting

period.
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18.

19.

20.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for
its items of property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives are different to the ones previously estimated, and it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-sirategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

b)  Measurement of the expected loss allowance (“ECL”) for receivables
The measurement of the expected loss allowance for receivables is an area that
requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behavior (the likelihood of debtors defaulting and the resulting
losses). Further details are set out in note 17(a) Credit Risk.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to--the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in there financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material related party transaction:

Transactions with key management personnel

All members of key management personnel are the council member of the Academy, and no
remuneration was paid to them during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Academy received scrip dividends of
HK$938,718 (2017: HK$1,932,902) from the Academy’s available-for-sale securities.
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21.

ACADEMY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale investments

Current assets
Inventories — general merchandise
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Amount due from a special purpose
entity
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Receipts in advance
Creditors and accrued charges

Net current assets
Net assets
Reserve and funds

Fair value reserve
General fund

Note

14

2018 2017
HKS HKS
48,344,157
| 49658003 U 1 4w
5w UBinaT
98,002,160 129,079,087
197,652 216,278
10,221,347 9,720,104
¢ 18978 i 4 17,752
13,234,016 . 8,569,628
23,671,393 18,523,762
25560 6830
8,754,321 6,662,194
(8,779,881) (6,673,024)
14,891,512 11,850,738
112,893,672 140,929,825
3,449,565 11,444,933
109,444,107 129,484,892
112,893,672 140,929,825

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 20 June 2019.

On behalf of the Council

Prof. Lau Chak-sing
President
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

22. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the Academy.

HKFRS 16 Leases’

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

HK (IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material?

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS

12 and HKAS 23!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

NS S

The Academy is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. The council’s members anticiple that the application of the new and revised
standards amendments or interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Academy, except for HKFRS 16, the actual impacts upon the initial
adoption of the standards may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the
information currently available to the Academy. The Academy may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until the standards are initially applied in that
financial report.
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Appendix 1
B 5% —

Membership of the Academy’s Committees and Subcommittees

BREBETAZEGRPAZEGNREAHE

(as of August 2019 EH E201948H)

Hong Kong Academy of Medicine

7 I 5 SR B e

Appeals Committee FFFZEE

Chairman Prof. John Leong
*E R HIR
Panel Members Dr. David Fang Prof. P.C. Ho Dr. S.P. Hui Dr. Lawrence Lai
&R/ MR B TEAEE (BEEEE e FFATEER FEAERAEE A
Dr. K.H. Lo Dr. W.P. Mak Prof. C.Y. Yeung
ERDILEE A BENEE TS BHI
China Affairs Committee P FEHEZE &
Chairman Prof. C.S. Lau Dr. Donald Li
xE B2 2 Hu% FRIREE A
Members Officers of the Academy
£8 EERE
*Until January 2019
BHZ20194 1A
Editorial Board (Focus) #i#Z% B & (Focus)
Editor Prof. Martin Wong
fmeE BEEEHX
Members Mr. Aaron Cheng Dr. David Fang Dr. C.C. Lau Prof. C.S. Lau
£8 BB S A Pape-tas 284 2EEHIR
Dr. Y.L. Yu

Editorial Board (Hong Kong Medical Journal) #i 82 B & (5 W8 2545

Editor-in-Chief Prof. Martin Wong
i imER BEEEHKR
Senior Editors Prof. L.W. Chu Dr. Albert Chui Prof. Michael Irwin Dr. Eric Lai
Sk imaE R ERHIX REREE FEEIER
Dr. K.Y. Leung Prof. Anthony Ng Dr. TW. Wong
ZEEE REBHIX BAESESE
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Editorial Board (Hong Kong Medical Journal) ##$8 % B & <75 ¥ & 24 58)

Editors Dr. K.S. Chan Dr. Jacqueline Chung  Dr. James Fung Dr. Brian Ho
fmeEs PRIEAE B4 RS & TEIRE A BREE
Prof. Ellis Hon Dr. KW. Huang Dr. W.K. Hung Dr. Bonnie Kwan
PRI MBI | XE REMESE S BEERE
Dr. Arthur Lau Dr. P.Y. Lau Dr. Danny Lee Prof. Thomas Leung
2ERE SRR TEER RERHIE
Prof. W.K. Leung Dr. Kenneth Li Dr. Janice Lo Dr. Herbert Loong
REREIX FRUEEE mE BEEEEE
Dr. James Luk Dr. Arthur Mak Dr. Henry Mak Dr. Martin Pak
PEszBRER A HHTE EREE BB
Dr. Walter Seto Prof. Regina Sit Dr. William Tang Dr. Jeremy Teoh
AIfHEARAE i3 SiE S e B BRAE & RIREREE
Dr. K.Y. Tse Dr. Harry Wang Dr. H.L. Wong Dr. Kenneth Wong
Hi=mEe ThEPIER =ERE Epian L
Prof. Patrick Woo Dr. Hao Xue Prof. Bryan Yan Dr. T.K. Yau
TASIIREIX Eeh e BREHE FEEE
Dr. Kelvin Yiu
whRRiE B
Epidemiology Advisors Dr. Daniel Ho Dr. Edmond Ma Dr. Gary Tse Prof. Shelly Tse
RITREERR A, HiamEsE BN EIRVAEEE S €5
Dr. lan Wong Dr. Esther Yu Dr. Hunter Yuen
TirerE REEEE REEE

Statistical Advisors Prof. Marc Chong Prof. William Goggins ~ Dr. Eddy Lam Dr. Carlos Wong
HEHE2EER HREHE MRELE TS By
Honorary Advisors Dr. David Chao Prof. Paul Lai

ZEEER [EE 58 58 FEE LR

International Editorial Advisory Board (Hong Kong Medical Journal)

MEAmiR B & B e (s S MER))

Members

Z£8

Prof. Sabaratnam Arulkumaran

Prof. Robert Atkins

Prof. Peter Cameron

Prof. Daniel Chan

Prof. David Christiani

Prof. Andrew Coats

Prof. James Dickinson

Prof. Willard Fee, JR

Prof. Robert Hoffman

Prof. Sean Hughes

Prof. Roger Jones

Prof. Michael Kidd

Prof. Arthur Kleinman

Prof. Stephen Leeder

Prof. Xiaoping Luo

Prof. William Rawlinson

Prof. Jonathan Samet

Prof. Yaojing Shi

Prof. David Weller

Prof. Max Wintermark

Prof. Atsuyuki Yamataka

Prof. Homer Yang

Prof. KG Yeoh

Prof. Matthew Yung

Prof. Zhijie Zheng
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Education Committee X B X B &

Chairman Prof. Gilberto Leung

ERE REGHIX

Members Dr. Alexander Chan Prof. Daniel Chan Dr. Karen Chan Dr. Y.K. Chan

=B PROEER PRIBIRHIX PRE=fmE PRECILER 4
Dr. Cecilia Fan Dr. William Ho Prof. lvan Hung Dr. C.H. Koo
e L KR & LERHIE Eapovids
Dr. May Lam Dr. Ronald Lam Dr. K.M. Lee Dr. H.T. Leong
MEREE M FRRE REFER
Prof. T.F. Leung Prof. Albert Martin Li Dr. C.M. Ngai Prof. Grace Tang
R BHIX FTRIEHR BEXE®E BBIBHIR
Dr. S.H. Tsui Dr. Sharon Wong Dr. Y.C. Wong Dr. Y.K. Wong
REE =AME TRABLE =RERLE
Dr. HW. Yung
THEH

Co-opted Members Prof. Henry Chan Dr. P.P. Chen Prof. C.S. Lau

EEERS BR N TR =R e 2= 23R

CME Subcommittee #EAF BB 2 F /N Z 5 &

Chairman Dr. David Chao

FE EEREE

Members Dr. C.L. Au Dr. K.H. Chan Dr. Billy Chiu Dr. Stephen Foo

=8 REE PR = R B8 AR HEERE L
Dr. S.F. Hung Dr. Mary Kwong Prof. Cindy Lam Prof. Gilberto Leung
ARE T EAE HES G S 1o MER B R
Dr. Lorna, Ng Ventura  Dr. Gene Tsoi
REsE BEELE

Finance and Investment Committee 1 B & B

Chairman Mrs. Vivian Chan
*E PRE B+
Members Dr. C.W. Chan Dr. Y.F. Chow Dr. David Fang Dr. Stephen Foo
£8 PRIEFRER SNk TREE B AR &
Mr. Paul Go
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House Committee N % ZEE &

Social Subcommittee £1-3/DAHZE 5 &

Chairman Prof. Henry Chan
EE PR N TTER
Members Dr. C.W. Chan Dr. Alexander Chiu Dr. Y.F. Chow Dr. Stephen Foo
=B PRIEFRER PR R B 4 RS B w e
Prof. H. Fung Mr. Hans Li Ms. Julie Li Dr. Raymond Mak
VilsE2 i FITRSTE ES et eSS
Dr. L.S. Pang Ms. Katherine Shiu Dr. Kathleen So Dr. Clara Wu
TERIEE mEALt REIRE TRk EER
Ex-officio Member Prof. C.S. Lau
ERES 2 2%
Advisor (IT) Mr. Joseph Lau
R (EHAER) £l iEb s
Advisor (M&E) Mr. Alfred Sit
EER (BEAIREFME) 5% SEP
*Until January 2019
BHZ20194% 1A
Human Resources Subcommittee A\ 771 &JR/DAZ 5 &
Chairman Prof. Henry Chan
£ BR TR
Members Dr. C.W. Chan Dr. Alexander Chiu Dr. L.S. Pang Ms. Katherine Shiu
=8 PRIEFREE ERREEE A TEIEE Bmmut
Ex-officio Members Dr. Y.F. Chow Dr. C.C. Lau Prof. C.S. Lau Prof. Gilberto Leung
BEAEE SRR S 2B E ZZEHE R
Prof. Martin Wong
\mEEHIK

Chairman Dr. Clara Wu
*E FAKIRER
Members Dr. Loretta Chan Dr. Joseph Chung Dr. Peter A. Fok Dr. Julian Fong
=B PRAEFREE 4 ERR RS EiBE FEICEE
Dr. Tom Ho Dr. Julianna Liew Dr. Frankie Yeung
EEEs BB HRIEE

International Affairs Committee FHEHEHZ B

Chairman Prof. C.S. Lau
*E 2=EH
Members Officers of the Academy
£8 EERE
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Membership Committee @ % B &

Chairman Dr. H.T. Luk
ERE P H B A
Members Prof. T.K. Chan Prof. L.K. Hung Prof. Joseph Lau Dr. C.K. Lee
£8 PRAR S HHX RER B HUR & Pli=E €5 FHER
Prof. C.K. Li
FENHIR

EREMZE &

Past Presidents Advisory Committee & 3

Convenor Dr. David Fang

BEA pap=-tat- L

Honorary Secretary Dr. Donald Li

ZEBuE FEIRE

Members Past Presidents of the Academy and Colleges
=8 BELOMERZEEEE

Professionalism and Ethics Committee B3 NG EMBE R B &

Co-Chairmen Dr. James Chiu Prof. Gilberto Leung

BExXE AT EEAE REEHIR

Members Dr. Phyllis Chan Prof. Annie Cheung Dr. WW. Go Prof. C.T. Hung

=8 ok B e 5 SRAEB R RESIERR RREORNHUIR
Prof. G.M. Joynt Dr. Mary Kwong Prof. Jimmy Lai Prof. Paul Lai

HES G S 1o R DEREIR FEE LI

Dr. Yolanda Law Prof. C.K. Li Dr. Hector Ma Dr. Axel Siu
AR FENHE PN RERE
Dr. H.Y. So Dr. Raymond Tsang Dr. Doris Tse Dr. H.W. Yiu
HESRE BHEEE EipE- PhEER

Dr. Jacqueline Yuen
b & s

Co-opted Members
HWREE

Dr. Calvin Chong
SRIEA A4

Dr. Julianna Liew

e 1o

Advisors

AR

Task Force on Advance Directives 78 ¢ 56 J¢ 15 75 2L & /Al

Dr. Bernard Lo

Dr. Mark Siegler

Dr. Haibo Wang
T

Convener Dr. Doris Tse
BEA WXERE
Members Dr. Philip Beh Prof. G.M. Joynt Dr. Mary Kwong Prof. Linda Lam
=B BEVEYE R AR B MEBEHIR
Dr. O.F. Wong Dr. Jacqueline Yuen
mHEE FrE et

T B SRR BE 20194F B
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Task Force on Disclosure, Apology and Alternative Dispute Resolution

HERE ~ WK T TRk R DA
Convener Dr. James Chiu
BEA A E A
Members Dr. Phyllis Chan Prof. G.M. Joynt Dr. W.W. Go Prof. Jimmy Lai
£8 PR B 2 28 REERSE ZRABRHIR
Prof. Paul Lai Dr. Yolanda Law Prof. Gilberto Leung Dr. Alan So
B I BEAIE REEHIR =i g
Dr. H.Y. So Dr. H.W. Yiu
BHEMREL oEER
Task Force on Genetics and Genomics 5 [ £2 J F [A] 4 2 2 & /4
Convener Prof. Gilberto Leung
BEA R
Members Prof. Annie Cheung Dr. Calvin Chong Dr. W.C. Leung Prof. C.K. Li
£33 SRAEBE R RIBEEAE RKEE FERHE
Prof. P.C. Sham Dr. Maureen Wong
AR ERER
Task Force on Social Media #1312 & /4
Convener Prof. C.T. Hung
BEA REERHUIX
Members Dr. Phyllis Chan Dr. Calvin Chong Dr. Ken Ho Dr. Gary Lau
=B ok ] % 5 RIBE B4 AIREEE AERE
Dr. Julianna Liew Dr. Lilian Wong
=Bt TREREE
Working Group on Professional Indemnity Insurance 5 3€ 5 £ R fig TAE /M
Chairman Dr. H.T. Luk
EE Bt EE A4
Members Dr. Angus Chan Dr. Y.F. Chow Dr. David Fang Dr. S.K. Ng
£8 PR 3% 1E B JEIRSEEEE TREE RIkRESE
Dr. Ares Leung Prof. Gabriel Leung Dr. Albert Luk Prof. W.S. Poon
REEERE R BHIR Boc 2 B B8 R IR
Dr. Matthew Tsui Prof. Patrick Yung
R A BRI
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Young Fellows Chapter 4= F ki + 40 &

College Representatives

PHBRAR
Anaesthesiologists Dr. C.H. Cheung Otorhinolaryngologists Dr. HW. Cho
i A RIEREE HauR EHEEE
Dr. Henry Wong Dr. Joseph Chung
X EEE EERGEE L
Community Medicine Dr. Edmund Fong Paediatricians Dr. Wilson Chan
Hers FEREE R BRAGITER 4
Dental Surgeons Dr. Julianna Liew Pathologists Dr. Y.K. Chong
R EEE 3L RIBEHER SRIEA B
Dr. S.M. Mak
IR
Emergency Medicine Dr. Frankie Yeung Physicians Dr. Heyson Chan
SIER 5B 5 LS PREMEEE A
Dr. S.Y. Chan
BRI B8
Family Physicians Dr. Loretta Chan Psychiatrists Dr. Calvin Cheng
RERE PR R WS
Dr. S.Y. Tse
BB
Obstetricians and Gynaecologists Dr. K.W. Cheung Radiologists Dr. Shiobhon Luk
ImER BN ETE RefEEe A4
Dr. Vivian Ng
SR
Ophthalmologists Dr. lan Wong Surgeons Dr. Charing Chong
BRE} TiReETEA SR} HEEEE
Dr. C.S. Yam
,EE$ = EQ
Orthopaedic Surgeons Dr. Paul A. Koljonen
&5 SHEELE
Dr. Kenny Kwan
MAREE
*Until June 2019
BZE20194 6 H
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Panel of Judges for Academy’s Prize

AL IH

A

Prize for Best Original Research by young Fellows (BORF) 4 5 B - J5 A1l B 58 ¢

Chairman Prof. Martin Wong

TE \mEEHIX

Final Judges Dr. Felix Chan Gabriel Leung Prof. Dennis Lo Dr. Edmond Ma

HETEE PR R 2 R EHIE EISBREIR BARREBE
Dr. TW. Wong
EUNES- LS

Evaluation Panel Prof. Emily Chan Dr. David Chao Prof. L.W. Chu Prof. Ellis Hon

&/ PR SRR JEl{& 58 e RoDRHIK PR IR
Prof. Michael Irwin Prof. Paul Lai Dr. Eddy Lam Dr. K.Y. Leung

REE ILFR MREDEE ZEEEL
Prof. Anthony Ng Prof. Samuel Wong Dr. lan Wong
REBHIE EgITES € TiREFEL
Prize for Best Original Research by Trainees (BORT) 5 £ 5 B 5 8 56 88

Chairman Prof. C.M. Lo

FE E BRI

Members Dr. Angus Chan Dr. Y.F. Chow Dr. C.W. Kam Prof. Linda Lam

=8 PREBIEERE AR EEE HEER MEBEHIR

Prof. Gilberto Leung
R B
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5 I . .. | . .
25" Anniversary Organising Committee* T AT EHEZE G

Chairman Dr. C.C. Lau

ERE 2SI A

Members Prof. Anthony Chan Prof. Henry Chan Dr. Y.C. Chan Dr. P.P. Chen

£8 PRIE B IR BR N TR PR MRAT B2 A
Dr. Ralph Cheung Dr. Y.F. Chow Dr. Tom Ho Dr. Elaine Kan
RE R EREEE AEEEE AR
Dr. Bernard Kong Prof. C.S. Lau Prof. Gilberto Leung Prof. Martin Wong
JTRAERES £ 2EEHIR RRBEHIE mEEHIK
Dr. Frankie Yeung
BRI

Publication Subcommittee™ 1} R /#Z5 5 &

Co-Chairmen Prof. Anthony Chan Prof. Gilberto Leung

BExXE PRIE = HIR REEHIR

Members Dr. Edmund Fong Dr. Angeline Lee

=8 FERBE FEERY

Scientific Subcommittee™ 2 flj /DA Z5 & &

Co-Chairmen Dr. Y.C. Chan Dr. P.P. Chen

BEERE PRIBREEE A4 SRl

Members Dr. Victor Abdullah Dr. Anthony Chan Dr. T.N. Chan Prof. K.M. Chu

=B AERE PRk 5 B8 PRENEE A RERHE
Dr. Daniel Fang Dr. W.S. Kong Dr. Bassanio Law Prof. W.K. Leung
FiEERE AR FIFERR RIEEHIR
Dr. Arthur Mak Dr. S.P. Mak Prof. Enders Ng Dr. C.M. Ngai
EHTBE HIEFE REUEHIE BEXEE
Dr. Kendrick Shih Dr. Sunny Tse Dr. Winnie Tse Dr. K.K. Wong
MEIS I e Eiife2ea k(R EE Epeaill
Prof. Martin Wong Dr. William Wong Dr. M.F. Yuen
BEAHIE EEEE RhmEE

Social Subcommittee™® ¥ X /DAZ5 5 &

Chairman Dr. Elaine Kan
xE LA B8
Members Dr. Samuel Chow Dr. Joan Fok Dr. Tom Ho Dr. Bernard Kong
=8 X s E EMIKEAE EEeE JLEARREE A
Dr. Shiobhon Luk Dr. Vivian Ng Dr. Kathleen So
PefpEEa £ RIMEEE R
*Until December 2018

HZ 20184 12 A
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Hong Kong Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and Response Institute

A U IG5 B B o M A T O

Governing Board 33 &

Chairman Dr. Donald Li
TE FEIRE
Vice-chairman Prof. C.S. Lau
BIEE 2EEHIR
Members Prof. Francis Chan Dr. C.C. Lau Prof. Gabriel Leung Mrs. Margaret Leung
=8 PR so 2% Bkl R B REEHLZT
Mr. Gregory Lo Mr. Jimmy Yuen
BRI E ROEREE
Advisors Dr. Vivien Chuang Dr. Heston Kwong Ms. Sally Tsui
B8RS HEHE R A Y B2 MR
(from 1 November 2018) (from 1 November 2018)
(Fh2018 4 11 A 1 BRLA) (Fh2018 411 A 1 BRLA)
Executive Committee TR E &
Chairman Dr. Donald Li
ERE FERELE
Members Prof. Henry Chan Mr. Aaron Cheng Dr. Y.F. Chow Dr. C.C. Lau
£8 BR 1 TR EhiE S AE EREEE 2% 41 %8
Prof. C.S. Lau Prof. Gilberto Leung
2B R RHIR
Programme Committee JHH Z B &
Chairman Dr. C.C. Lau
*E 255 158
Members Prof. Emily Chan Dr. P.P. Chen Dr. L.P. Leung Dr. Axel Siu
=8 PREDEHIR LMW EE RTHE mERE
Dr. Thomas Tsang
s
Ex-Officio Member Dr. Donald Li
ERES FERE
Quality Assurance and Finance Committee H 2R EMMEZ B &
Chairman Dr. Y.F. Chow
*E AmREE
Members Mr. Raymond Chan Dr. P.P. Chen Mr. Aaron Cheng Dr. C.C. Lau
=8 PREREAE TR E a4 2% 1) %8
Prof. C.S. Lau Dr. H.T. Luk Ms. Nancy Tse
2= 2P et HFER T
Ex-Officio Member Dr. Donald Li
ERERE FEIRE
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Hong Kong Jockey Club Innovative Learning Centre for Medicine

é%%%@ﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁw$@

Advisory Committee ## & B &

Chairman Dr. C.C. Lau

TE el

Members Dr. P.P. Chen Ms. Eva Lam Prof. C.S. Lau Prof. Gilberto Leung

=8 B e St ZZEHE R R
Dr. H.T. Luk Dr. Sharon Wong
|3;'E/ /EEE %Eﬂﬁ)’(%

Operation Committee 2 BREH

Chairman Dr. P.P. Chen

£ B

Members Dr. T.N. Chan Mr. Aaron Cheng Dr. Benny Cheng Dr. Dominic Foo

£8 PRIREEE Bt BRI EE BERIREE
Dr. Patricia Kan Ms. Eva Lam Dr. George Ng Dr. H.Y. So
HLENE MBSt REEE HEERE
Dr. Abraham Wai Prof. George Wong
BRIAE & =T R

Education Subcommittee Z{ & /NMLZ B

Chairman Prof. George Wong

xE BRI

Members Dr. Johnny Chan Dr. K.F. Chan Dr. K.H. Chan Dr. May Lam

=8 PRIE B84 PREEEFEE 4 PR = EE 28 MELE
Dr. Y.K. Chan Dr. Y.F. Chow Dr. Anthony Chu Dr. Dominic Foo
PR ILEH B8 A BNk KEEE BEREE
Dr. Raymond Ho Dr. F.T. Lee Dr. W.L. Poon Dr. Edmond Pow
fAIIRAREE 4 FEER EEBEA SR EAE
Dr. K. W. So Dr. K.K. Tang Prof. Clement Tham
BRiEEL BB EE B

Quality Management Subcommittee & B4 H/MNIZ B &

Chairman Dr. H.Y. So
FE BEMEL
Members Dr. Marco Chan Dr. Benny Cheng Dr. Ralph Cheung Dr. Sara Cheung
=8 CEZTY ER IR B ESEL FREEE
Ms. Josephine Chung  Mr. S.K. Kan Dr. Carmen Lam Dr. Terry Lau
EHEL+ B L MEEE 2T R %
Dr. S.W. Law Dr. Shirley Ngai
BRI E BmEEL
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Research and Development Subcommittee W 3 /ML Z B &
Chairman Dr. T.N. Chan
EE FRREER
Members Dr. Jacky Chan Dr. Y.F. Choi Dr. Dominic Foo Dr. Abraham Wai
£8 RIEEEE L ETIEE BEIREE A BREEE

Prof. George Wong
e

Simulation Trainers Certification Subcommittee 5% ¢ 5l 4% %8 ifi 52 35 /M 41

ZEY

Chairman Dr. Benny Cheng

FE S S 8

Members Dr. Carmen LAM Dr. Alan So Prof. George Wong Dr. Albert Chan
=8 MEREE (=L L \mRITHIR PR &5 AR B8

Dr. George Ng

Ex-Officio Members Dr. P.P. Chen Mr. Aaron Cheng
EREREB =y B

Faculty % i

Honorary Advisors

Dr. Francis Mok

Prof. Nivritti Gajanan Patil

ZEEM RERBYE

Honorary Director Dr. P.P. Chen

HEEE o A Y B

Honorary Deputy Dr. T.N. Chan Dr. H.Y. So Prof. George Wong
Directors PRERZEEE A4 EE R =HEIEHIR

Z BRI

Honorary Assistant

Dr. Dominic Foo

Dr. Patricia Kan

Dr. Leonard Sin

Dr. Conti Yuen

Directors HEIREEE BlEET S SHERREE et
ZEIPLEEE
CMS Visiting Dr. Timothy James Dr. T.N. Chan Dr. Ralph Cheung Dr. Sara Cheung
Scholars Brake PRI EEEE A R R E FONEEE
MR BIRE
;,DEEEE;§ Dr. Dominic Foo Dr. Patricia Kan Dr. Leonard Sin Dr. H.Y. So
BEEEYE I R GRS BHEMEL
Prof. George Wong Dr. Conti Yuen
=B fr S8
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SZ-HK Medical Specialist Training Centre

R T 5 SR B e

Advisory Committee B [ Z B &

Co-Chairmen Prof. C.S. Lau Mr. Z.X. Yang

BEEXE 2= E H % BEMEE

Vice-chairman Prof. Nivritti Gajanan Patil

BIEE

Members (Hong Kong) Dr. Sidney Au Yeung Dr. Phyllis Chan Dr. David Chao Prof. Annie Cheung

£8 (&%) BSR4 ek [l 2 8 FARmEE SRIEBE I *
Dr. Ruby Ching Dr. Y.F. Chow Prof. Edward Lai Dr. C.C. Lau
REBLE JEIRN B3 SEHIK ekl
Dr. C.B. Law Prof. Gilberto Leung Prof. C.K. Li Dr. W.L. Poon
IR R R EIHIE EEBEE
Dr. Matthew Tsui Prof. Martin Wong Dr. C.H. Yan
REEE BEEERE ITHRENE &

Members (Shenzhen)  Prof. Godfrey Chan Prof. C.W. Cheung Dr. Karen Fan Dr. Joe Fan

=8 () PRSI RAEEHIE BRI 8 B A
Prof. W.C. Lam Prof. Anne Lee Prof. Frankie Leung Prof. X.M. Liu
MEFHIE ESSE S Eed EIIVAIES €SS SIRERREIX
Dr. Henry Mak Prof. Hextan Ngan Prof. Pearl Pai Mr. T.W. Wang
EREBELE EABIIEEIX B FAIREIE FREXE
Dr. William Wong Dr. K.H. Yiu
HEEE PREE

*also a representative of HKU-SZH
Al A& B E R B a9 &

T B SRR BE 20194F B
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Representation of the Academy

BEMAGE

Academy’s Representatives in Other Organisations

i S A A 9 RO R

Organisation

Committee

Academy’s Representative(s)

BE Z88 BEMRRE
Active Healthy Kids Global Alliance Member of Stakeholder Group, Hong Prof. C.S. Lau
ENRERE RIS Kong Report Card on Physical Activity =~ 2322 ##%
for Children and Youth
BRERERFTLFRIVEDHRE T -
BHEHERIKE
Chief Secretary for Administration’s Community Care Fund Task Force Prof. C.S. Lau
Office AEASER /A 2EEHIR
BEE Al RPFAE
Chinese Journal of Graduate Medical Editorial Board Dr. C.C. Lau
Education wEZESY kel
(FREBEERBEHE) Mk Prof. C.S. Lau
2E BB
Dr. Donald Li
FEIRE
Department of Education of Guangdong  Teaching Guidance Committee Prof. C.S. Lau
Province on Clinical Training Sites for RREHR

BEREHEE

Undergraduates in Guangdong
Province

V%ézﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁuuf%ﬁﬁ%m%ﬁ%%
BFEE (FEEZEE)

Department of Health,

Project Steering Committee on

Prof. Gilberto Leung

HKSAR Government Standards for Ambulatory Facilities B = IR
ERFERTEES AHEERBREEEEEEE Prof. Raymond Liang

DEFHR
Department of Health, Task Force on Regulation of Advanced Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Therapeutic Products RREHR

EERRBAEEE

RERBRERZERERM

Food and Health Bureau,

Advisory Group on Antibiotics

Prof. Martin Wong

HKSAR Government Stewardship in Primary Care =|EEHE
EBFRBNRYEEER BB AR T IERA/ A

Food and Health Bureau, Assessment Panel for Commissioned Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Study on Healthcare Manpower G265

BRRERNRYEELER
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Academy’s Representatives in Other Organisations

S AR At B A P AR R

Organisation

Committee

Academy’s Representative(s)

g £E® BEMNRRXK
Food and Health Bureau, Assessment Panel for the Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Commissioned Study on Regulatory 22 2 2%
EERRBENEMEREER Framework for Healthcare Professionals

(Extended Study)

LT - BEEEABNHRELEE

(FERAFT) ST/ A
Food and Health Bureau, Committee on Promotion of Dr. Clara Wu
HKSAR Government Breastfeeding ARk IREE
EBFRBNRYEEER RESDIARHEZES
Food and Health Bureau, Committee on Promotion of Organ Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Donation 2= 2 HIR
EAEFRBENRONEGER RERBEEEZES
Food and Health Bureau, Consultative Group on Voluntary Health ~ Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Insurance Scheme 2= 2HR
BEREFRBNRYREER B REERETEI A/ A
Food and Health Bureau, Health and Medical Research Fund - Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Research Fellowship Assessment Panel  2I)2 2 2%
EERERBENEMEEER BEGEMTEES - TRESTES
Food and Health Bureau, High Level Steering Committee on Prof. C.S. Lau
HKSAR Government Antimicrobial Resistance 2= 2 HUR

ARFRENRYEFELER

NEEMEESEEELRES

Food and Health Bureau,

Steering Committee on Genomic

Prof. Martin Wong

HKSAR Government Medicine =R EHIR
EREFRBNRYREER ARERSEEEEEY
Food and Health Bureau, Steering Committee on e-Health Record  Dr. Gene Tsoi
HKSAR Government Sharing (e-Health Record Office) sEREL
EBERFERENEMEREER ETRELSOBERELZES (B Dr. Raymond Yung
fRERACERRERE) S e
Food and Health Bureau, Working Group on Data and Information  Dr. Gene Tsoi
HKSAR Government Standards (e-Health Record Office) VN L
BEREFRBNRY REER HERESEETIEE
Food and Health Bureau, Working Group on Hong Kong Genome  Dr. Lam Ka On
HKSAR Government Project MeEkEEE
BEEFRBENRONEGER ESERMBTE TE)E Dr. Jason So
BB A

Food and Health Bureau,
HKSAR Government
BEEFRBENRONEGER

Working Group on Legal, Privacy and

Security Issues (e-Health Record

Office)

EE - LB RRTEEIE
BEFRRLENER)

Dr. Danny Lee
FREE

T B SRR BE 20194F B

127



Appendix 2
B 8% —

Academy’s Representatives in Other Organisations

S AR At B A P AR R

Organisation Committee Academy’s Representative(s)

g £E® BEHREK
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Expert Advisor Prof. C.S. Lau
Greater Bay Area Hygiene and Health EXREM L= B #9%
Cooperation Conference
BERANEEGFERRESIERS
Hong Kong Association for Integrationof — Advisor - Integrative Joint Organizational  Prof. C.S. Lau
Chinese-Western Medicine Platform (IJOP) 22 B HUR
BEETTABEEBEY BEfE - PABBEYE
Hong Kong Dental Association Advisor, Hong Kong International Dental ~ Prof. C.S. Lau
BRI REY Expo and Symposium (HKIDEAS) 2019 222 %%
2019 FEBEB T RHEBER 2 -
FEE ]
Hong Kong Museum of Medical Honorary Advisor Prof. C.S. Lau
Sciences Society el RREHIR
AEEBEEYESg
Hospital Authority Advisory Panel on the Clinical Services Dr. H.T. Luk
BiEEE Plan for Hong Kong East Cluster BE B 4
NBE R B AR R AR TS AT I /) A
Hospital Authority Advisory Panel on the Clinical Services ~ Dr. Y.F. Chow
EEprEIR S Plan for Kowloon West Cluster FEREEL

BEPO R ARG R RIS A1 BRI/ R

Hospital Authority
BEREER

Central Training and Development
Committee

PRBFINERERS

Prof. Gilberto Leung
R R

Hospital Authority
BhRERR

Domain Group on eHR Content and
Information Standards - Role-based
Access Control

BEFRFELBABTRES
- EBRE R E ENEE R

iEEEE

Dr. Mark Chan
FoR [ )45 58 A=

Hospital Authority

Forum on Training Collaboration

Prof. Henry Chan

BREER Between Hospital Authority and Hong R ) TR
Kong Academy of Medicine Dr. C.C. Lau
EERUEEENIEIIGENEENR 2R ABAE
Fa Prof. C.S. Lau
GEI=2 65

Prof. Gilberto Leung
RS HEHIX

Hospital Authority Hong Kong Children’s Hospital Dr. Winnie Tse
B ERER Research Steering Committee HiTkEEE L

BAERBEERMNEELRES

Hospital Authority
BITEER

128  HKAM Annual Report 2019

Scientific Programme Committee,
Hospital Authority Convention 2019
2019 Bl BRI AEEFZES

Prof. Gilberto Leung
R BRI



Appendix 2
B 8% —

Academy’s Representatives in Other Organisations

S AR At B A P AR R

Organisation

Committee

Academy’s Representative(s)

B £ZEg BENRE
Hospital Authority Simulation Training Committee (STC) Dr. P.P. Chen
ErEER BEFIREES BB
Hospital Authority Task Force on e-Health Record Dr. H.T. Luk
SEEIER Radiology Image Sharing P H R A
BEFRERLEMTBEGERES /M
Hospital Authority Task Force on Limited Registration Prof. C.S. Lau
BElrEEm Scheme 2EEHIR

BREFMFEEE/ A

Hospital Authority

Working Group on the Design of

Prof. T.F. Leung

BIREER the Hong Kong Children’s Hospital 25T BT

Research Fellowship Programme

Eib R E BRI S 858 T

e/ NE
International Academy for CPD Member Prof. C.S. Lau
Accreditation a8 22 2R
ERBEYE P RER SR Prof. Gilberto Leung

R GEHIR

International Association of Medical Continued Competency Working Group ~ Prof. C.S. Lau
Regulatory Authorities FIERE W TE/ MR =R e

BREEEERERS

International Association of Medical

Research and Education Working

Prof. Gilberto Leung

Regulatory Authorities Group P S e
RERREEMEDE MERHE TIE A
Labour Department, The Occupational Deafness Medical Dr. T.Y. Lo
HKSAR Government Committee EEEBA
BEREFEETS IR BEMXRERELRESY Dr. C.M. Ngai
BEXES
Macao Academy of Medicine Chairman, External Review Panel Prof. C.S. Lau
R 2R BRAENEEE 2 2R
The Hong Kong Academy of Nursing Honorary Advisor Prof. C.S. Lau
ABEEERZR E IR R2EHIR
The Medical Council of Hong Kong Accreditation Exercise of the Medical Dr. Y.F. Chow
BEBBRBLES Education and Training of The Chinese  JERI 3% 4

University of Hong Kong and The
University of Hong Kong
BEERNABNEBRNEZESEHYE
IlARET & TIE - T2/

T B SRR BE 20194F B
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Academy’s Representatives in Other Organisations

S AR At B A P AR R

Organisation

i

Committee
ZEg

Academy’s Representative(s)

BENRX

The Medical Council of Hong Kong
EBEHEZEE

Education and Accreditation Committee

BELFNELZES

Prof. Gilberto Leung
RREHIR
Dr. H.T. Luk
Bt BB A4

The Medical Council of Hong Kong
BEABKEES

Panel of Assessors
EHENEZEER

Dr. James Chiu
AT EAE
Dr. Francis Mok

LzmE
aINE

The Medical Council of Hong Kong
BEABKEER

The Medical Council of Hong Kong
(Policy Meeting)
EABKEES (BXER)

Dr. C.P. Cheung
RRMEEE &
Dr. Y.F. Chow
JEREELE
Dr. C.C. Lau
ekl

Dr. Danny Lee
FREBRE

University Grants Committee

REHEEPEREE
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2020

2020 FH BT ELIE - BERE

EMEBERER

Dr. Victor Tang
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Academy’s Representatives on Scientific Meetings (China and Overseas)

B ek (9 il ah) 2 R EAR

Date (DD/MM/YYYY)
R (B/A/%F)

Overseas Scientific Meeting

BINBMER

Organiser

EMHEE

Academy’s
Representative(s)

BENREK
01-02/09/2018 2018 Summit Forum of China’s Chinese Medical Doctor Dr. Y.F. Chow
Standardised Medical Residency ~ Association AREEA
Training PR E Dr. C.C. Lau
2018 F{Ebr BN R &L= 8 2SI AE
wiE Prof. C.S. Lau
25 B 2%
Dr. Donald Li
FERE
Prof. Martin Wong
HEAHIE
College representatives
R L
6-9/10/2018 2018 International Conference on  International Association of Prof. C.S. Lau
Medical Regulation Medical Regulatory Authorities 222 HE
2018 R B AR &% BlfR R E S
19-21/10/2018 World Health Conference The General Association of Prof. C.S. Lau
tHREBEAS Zhejiang Entrepreneurs, Chinese 22 B
Medical Association and
Shanghai Medical Innovation &
Development Foundation
ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁi@;‘ q:;@ c2gk
BalFrERES
15-16/12/2018 Postgraduate Medical Education Chinese Medical Doctor Prof. C.S. Lau
Forum in Guangdong-Hong Association 222 HIF
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area: PEERMGE
Improving Clinical Teaching Skills
of Core Trainers in Resident
Training
BAREXRESHNEREER
B ERMERRRSEE DR
1EIE
25/02/2019 2nd Guangdong-Hong Kong- Health Commission of Guangdong  Prof. C.S. Lau
Macao Greater Bay Area Province 2R EHIE
Hygiene and Health Cooperation ~ ERF4EEEZES
Conference
FEEBRNERFERRES
ERE
11-13/04/2019 Internal Medicine Meeting American College of Physicians Dr. Y.F. Chow
FREAREH® EHEMBE EREELE

T B SRR BE 20194F B
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Academy’s Representatives on Scientific Meetings (China and Overseas)

B ek (9 il ah) 2 R EAR

Date (DD/MM/YYYY)
R (B/A/%F)

Overseas Scientific Meeting

BINBMER

Organiser

EMHEE

Academy’s
Representative(s)

BENREK
20-21/04/2019 Guangdong’s Standardised Guangdong Medical Doctor Prof. C.S. Lau
Medical Residency Training Association 2= 2 HIR
Clinical Skills Competition 2019 EREMpE
cum Annual Meeting 2019 of
the Medical Education Working
Committee of the Guangdong
Medical Doctor Association
2019 FERE TP B AR g/ 15
FIERR BB 2019 FER
LR ERERESEHETIE
ZEREY
6-10/05/2019 RACS Congress Royal Australasian College of Prof. C.S. Lau
PVIEESIVEE L Surgeons BRI
B2 RN
01-02/06/2019 2019 Summit Forum of Greater Shenzhen Medical Doctor Prof. C.S. Lau
Bay Area’s Standardised Medical ~ Association GIEI=E 65
Residency Training Y THEE R e College representatives
2019 & BB R AEE (IR B AR AHBRAR
HLFISERESE
08-09/07/2019 The First HongKong-Shenzhen The University of Hong Kong- Dr. P.P. Chen
Simulation Education Conference ~ Shenzhen Hospital and e
EREES - FERHEes Guangdong Medical Doctor Dr. C.C. Lau
Association 2 eEE
EERBRIIBRREREREEM  HKIC ILCM
e representatives
BEETGRMMBERE
BRI ORER
30-31/08/2019 2019 Summit Forum of China’s Chinese Medical Doctor Dr. Y.F. Chow
Standardised Medical Residency Association FEIRBEL
Training mh B BE Rt e Prof. Gilberto Leung
2019 F{TBr BRA R &L ITT = & REGEHIX
g College representatives
PRBRKE
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Fellowship Statistics
e+ B

(as of August 2019 E E201948A)

College =215 No. of Fellows B¢+ % H

Anaesthesiologists fifl i} 555
I

Community Medicine #+ & 5822 199
—

Dental Surgeons ZF &} 312
I

Emergency Medicine &JER} 383
I

Familx Phxsicians REEEEE 496
Obstetricians & Gxnaecologists mER 505
E%Rhﬁhilmglgﬁiﬂf RR 319
VAT 481

pltgrhinglaryngologists B & MxF 176
aisiians &% 653
Bl 22 R 294
Rial S e 1,791
i 405
e — 578
- 979
‘ 5c‘)0 1 0‘00 1 5‘00 20‘00

o

Total #8284 8, 126

Note: There are 73 Academy Fellows who possess Fellowship in two or more different specialties.

& | B3t AR LRI B L B
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List of New Fellows in 2018
201 845 187 14 e 1 44 B

New Fellows admitted at the Extraordinary General Meetingon 21 June 2018

7 2018 4F 6 B 21 H 547 2 45 B K € b W 40 iy 397 34 e+

The following nominations were approved by Council on 21 June 2018 (Total: 122 Fellows).

IATIRZEN 2018 F 6 A 21 HERKZE S#t & (122 ubzt) o

The Hong Kong College of Anaesthesiologists (12 Fellows)
ERMBAEEBER (12 kL)

Chan Cheuk Yan Chan Lok Hang Chan Sze Man, Mandy Dharmangadan, Kwok Hiu Yeung, Dilys
PREEA PR 21 PR B Manimala e
Lam Ming Hon, David Lo Kar Yan, Joyce Man Po Ning, Adeline  Ng Siu Pan Ng Wai Tsan
R ERN gy R RIEE
Tsang Man Shing Wong Wai Ming, Jaclyn
B X TES
Hong Kong College of Community Medicine (3 Fellows)
EEMEEEER (3ukt)
Chan Siu Yin Choi Yu Sze, Cissy So Man Chit
PR ik 38 B2FE TR
The College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong (13 Fellows)
BEBITRESR (13 ukt)
Chan Man Ha Chee, Deborah Chiu Joy Ngo, Joanna  Lam Yu Hang Lee Tse Kwan, Louisa
BREE ELH JAEE HFE =)
Leung Chung Yin Leung Ming Yin Ng Sze Wing, Sylvia Pong Sze Ming Tse Yuen Kwan
2RE RHE REFFEK e AR A IR
Wong Hoi Yan, Helena  Ying Chin Ho Yip Hill Ying
mELM EREE =)
The Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (15 Fellows)
ERREBZZR (15ukt)
Chan Kam Sum Cheung Yan Kit Chui Man long Ka | Kam Ting Ting
BER &R0 R ALE wE A=la Higte
Kwan Sin Man Lam Ying Ying Lau Sek Fung, Spike Tam Wing Yi, Cherry Tse Tak Kei
RAEE heggs 2i51& BT HHMEE
Tse Tung Wing, George Wong Chun Pong Wong Yeung Shan, Yeung Yee Mei Yuen Ming Wai
BIEES FIRF Samuel B RPAE
=P

The College of Ophthalmologist of Hong Kong (2 Fellows)

ERRMESRR (2ukt)
Far Ying
Y FHIKE

Fung Siu Kay, Nicholas

Hong Kong College of Paediatricians (2 Fellows)

ERRANERR (2 ukL)
Hou Cheuk Ting, Andy  Leung Kit Yan
EEE 2R
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The Hong Kong College of Pathologists (7 Fellows)
ERFEBENER (7 ukt)

Chan Chun Ngai
BRIZ 3R

Shum, Rocky
s

Cheung Sin
w®1E

Yuk Man Ting
Bz

Lam, Winwhole Larry
Ruey Si

=

EERER

Lee Wai Tung
FER

Shea Ka Ho

=
REE

Hong Kong College of Physicians (37 Fellows)
BEBRBIESKR (37 ubktt)

Chan Kwong Yue, Eric
PeR R

Cheung Man-tung,
Christina
SREY

Keung Kai Man
=R

Lam Kwan Wai

MEE

Leung Sai Chau
it ey

Sung, Jonathan
Gabriel
NGID-]

Wong Ting Ting, Angel
HIFE

Yu Kit Yu

R

Cheng Hiu Man
(54

Chow Lai Man, Vivian
ERE

Kong Hoi Yan, Harriet
TELR

Lam Kwan Yu
MEH)

Li Man Lung
FEE

Tang Sze Wan
BLHr

Wong Kin Ho
Y

Yung Ching Ching

==
> EE AR

Cheng Ka Chun
Bk

Ho Chun Wing
GIEEES

Kwan Hon Hang

Eaps

Lam Sai Tim
USRI

Lui, Abdul Rashid Nok
Shun

BEaalE

To Ki Wai, Heather
HEZE

Yeung Ka Pik, Vivian
5 5eEE

Cheng Yue Hong
BRI ER

Ho Hung Kwong
fals

Kwok Gin Wai
SPRE 4

Lau Wai San, Angela
22

Sakhrani, Navin

BEST N

Tsang Chiu Chung
BHRIR

Yeung Wan Yin
R

Cheung Chi Fung

RESE

Ho Wing Bing, Lydia

(EEERI

Kwok Wang Chun

R

Lee Tsz Heung

ETE
Sin Ho Kwan

SR

Tse Chit Ming
514

Yiu Ka Ling
R

The Hong Kong College of Psychiatrists (1 Fellows)
EREHNEER (1 ukt)

Wan Yuen Ting
o {1

Hong Kong College of Radiologists (17 Fellows)

BRRHMESRR (17 kL)

Chan Chun Hin
FR1&EF

Dai Yuk Ling, Eunice
CIRsibag

Lee Shing Fung
FRKIE

Chan Pui Kwan, Joyce

R A

Ip Siu Kwan, Natalie
BE%i5

Lo Wai Keung
EfZ5

Chan Wai Tat, Victor
PRIZE

Lau Hon Wai
2ERL

Tang Chun Wah
il g

Cheng Hei Man
&8

Law Ka Chai, Eric

o
b

Tse Chi Hon, James

Chong Wing Ho
FEK R
Lee Hong Ching
FEE

Tse Pui Ying
AR

T B SRR BE 20194F B

135



Appendix 4
B 5% I

Wong Kin Hoi Yip Wing Ling, Winnie
=R B

The College of Surgeons of Hong Kong (13 Fellows)
BEBMIESR (13 ubkt)

Fung Wai Wun Ip Chi Ho Lam Tang Yu
RSERE BEEx MRIET

Li Ki Kwong Lin Ming Fai Lo Ting Kit
FEN AREANE JE B4

Leung Lok Hei, Clarence Li Kai Man

Poon Yick Kwan,
Vincent

S

FRIZ

Tam Siu Chung

R

New Fellows admitted at the 25th Annual General Meeting on 7 December 2018

16 2018 4 12 A 7 H 847 2 58 -+ Fu Jg B 42 & Woam s o e &

The following nominations were approved by Council on 7 December 2018 (Total: 142 Fellows).

ATHRZEN 2018 F 12 A 7 BERKZE4E (K 142 ft) -

The Hong Kong College of Anaesthesiologists (13 Fellows)
ERMERESER (13 ubtt)

Chan Chi Wai Chan Sung Pan Chung Sinman, Angela Ho Hok Yu, Roger
PRES(E PR = R fa] B
Hui Yung Ting, Lau Lai Ning, Lydia Leung Sze Mun, Ng Yikjin, Amelia
Constance 2E= Amelia KA
FTYERE R
Tsai Ka Ying Tse Cheuk Kwun, Wong Si-Ling, Rosinni
BER Jacqueline 3T
WEE

Hui Cheuk Man, Olivia
TR

Tong Man Chun,
Terence
& X (E

Hong Kong College of Community Medicine (4 Fellows)
EEMEBEER (4 ubkt)

Au Ka Man Lam Ho Yeung Tsang Hing Lim,
(@56 MEF Kenneth
2E) S

Yeung Chin Chin
BEF

The College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong (1 Fellow)
ERITIREZR (1 kL)
Thongdee, Pornpaka

Hong Kong College of Emergency Medicine (10 Fellows)
ERSERESR (10 ubkt)

Chiu King Yung Kwong Po Yin Lee Shun Fung
B BRRE 2R

Suen Pao Yim Tsang Ho Kai, Patrick ~ Tse Choi Fung
FRIRE N #FRE
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Leung Hou Jiu,
Michael
REERE

Wong Chin Pang
TREE

Li Hin Son, Hinson

FE

Yuen Man Yue, Terry
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The Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (11 Fellows)
EEREBZ2R (11 ubkt)

Au Tai Kwan, Eva

K #3

Leung Yuen Kin,
Kenneth
2

Wong Ka Ki, David
FRE

Chow Tsz Ling

Lui How Mui
a171E

Dao Man Chi
k= ovd

Mok Ka Yee
2ExR18

Lee Sum
=3

Or Ka Yan

==

52 A

Leung Lok Hang
REET

Tsim Koon Lan

EE®

The Hong Kong College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists (10 Fellows)

BEREEMNSR (10 kL)

Chan Chung Yin, Joyce

Chan Wai Yin, Winnie

Cheung Yui Shing

Chung, Carmen Diana

He Mung Yuen

PRAETT PRI SR I =Wl &=

Li Yau Chung Wong Lo Wong Yin Yan, Ivy Wu Win Sum Yip Chui Shan
Fthiz =EE TR FARED 22

The College of Ophthalmologist of Hong Kong (8 Fellows)

BEBREBESEKR (8 uktt)

Chen Lijia Cheung, Janice Chow Po Chee Fong Yeuk Ying, Yoly Lok Ka Hing
PRIPIE REE ABEZ AER RRE
Tsang, Susanna Wong Ka Wai Wu Tian Xin, Christine

& 2y 11 mHRE RRD

The Hong Kong College of Orthopaedic Surgeons (15 Fellows)
ERBERESRR (15 ukt)

Chan Chi Chiu, Dennis
PR ¥ 41

Lam Yuk Yu
MEH

Ng, Wesley
RIEBE

Chan Chun Ming
PR & 85

Leung Siu Ming,
Anderson

RAH

So Lok Wah, Noah

b Mg

RERIE

Chan Hing Shing
PR B2 5

Liu Ka Ki, Stephanie
B

Tam, Karson
EigIE

Chan Kin Yan, Kenneth
PREE

Lo Chi Yin, John

Tang Yuk Kwan
BEK

Hau Wai Shun, Wilson
&&=

Man Lok Pong
X EEF

Wan Hay-Man, Keith
FHX

The Hong Kong College of Otorhinolaryngologists (6 Fellows)
ERESRDIEER (6ubtt)

Lai Chee Fung, Calvin

R=g

Wong Nga Sze

Lau Lai, Leah
2B

Ng Wai Shun
REER

Wong Chun Lok,
Andrew
e

Wong Kai Chuen
ERUR

Hong Kong College of Paediatricians (12 Fellows)
BERRNEER (12 kL)

Bao Wing Kan,
Julianna

#EKT

Ho, Stephanie

(B

Cheng, James Wesley
Ching-hei
BlIEfE

Lam Ying Yin
MEE

Cheng Man Hin, Mark
(g

Leung Ka Yan, Karen

‘;%‘ = =S|
FA /O

Chiu Ting-gee, Annie
i e A0

Leung Sze Yin, Agnes

T B SRR BE 20194F B

Chung Fung Shan
43 el 3

Ng Kah Yee, Brenda
sk
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Tsui Tak Kong Yan Lai Sim
EEH HEeE

The Hong Kong College of Pathologists (1 Fellow)
ERRESENER (1 ubt)

Chung Ah-yu, lvy

sE LN

Hong Kong College of Physicians (19 Fellows)
ERANEZER (19 fubtt)

Chan Chun Kau, Cheng Man Fung Lau Chak Kwan Lau Wai Nga, Grace Lee Hiu Yu

Gordon (g o) k=i FIEH)

BRI TR

Ma Ka Yan Mak Kwok Shing Mak Lung Yi Ng Hoi Yee, lvy So Chak Yu

BHRE ZEBIRK HER RIgE BOETF

Sun Chia Li, Carly Sze Shu Yue Tam Ho Pui, Lydia Tam Tin Chak, Aston To Wai Pan

H= R &FF s ERE I

Wai Tsz Yan Wong Sai Kuen, Alfred  Wong Yiu Kwong Yip Wing Ho

BIER E it =R Bokx

The Hong Kong College of Psychiatrists (6 Fellows)

EBRBURIESER (6 ukt)

Ching Wing Ka Lau Yuk Shing Lau Haiyen, Zoe Vivian  Poon Yuan Ping, Wong Ching Vi

e 215 2G5 Yvonne Patricia =518
EEF

Yip Sek Lam, Stanley

ZHF

Hong Kong College of Radiologists (4 Fellows)

EBMSRESR (4 ubit)

Lo Shing-yen, Christine Lo Wing Sim, Anita Wong Sze Chun Yip Pui Kit

B [EEE =EE EmZR

The College of Surgeons of Hong Kong (22 Fellows)
ERIIRIERERE (22 ubtt)

Chan Toi Yin Chang Yuk Kwan Chow Che Lok, Felix
BRISE wEAR IEkes
Hung Cheung Yu Hung Ka Wai, Ray Ko Choi Wah
L HKRE R
Leung Chi Lun, Yvonne Lim, Delon Lim Jin Mun, Jeren
2t MEKE MR
Lo Wai Yan, Kitty Ng Ka Kei, Stephen Ng Ka Ying
EEM R RER
Tse Po Ki, Teresa Yeung, Fanny
B 558
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Chow Shuk Wan, Joyce
BMEE

Kong Chun Wai, James
ARESE

Ling, Tsz Him

ESE

Ng Man Wah, Vienna
ROHE

Chum Hoi Leong

BYl%

Lee Chun Wai
ZEH

Liu Yan Ling, Grace
BER

Tsang Yi Po

A=
LIaE
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Organisational Structure of the Academy

P B AR AR

Council and Committees
G EEEREES

Chief Executive Officer
TR ES

Chief Operations Officer

EEMBE
Managing Editor Senior Executive
o Manager
HBiRE .
BRTREE
Corporate Affairs
BBEK Education HKJC
Office ) s Innovative
Administration Publications ]Zve‘f'“? and Membership Learning Centre for
1T AR Activitics =E3 Medicine
EERE EEEES
Finance Facilities, AV, IT P
B S0 I - RlsEE SRR
’ HARE e
Human Resources "
ABER

Director
HEL
hves IO
Centre Manager
S WIPN 5
SZ-HK DWC
Medical Specialist isaster
Training Preparedness and
Centre Response Institute
S &
REBREN EERE®
[y SRS
RN
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